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REACAT T pppENDIX No, A

National Assembly for Wales Standards of Modern Zoo Practice for Environment
Food & Rural Affairs

Lhywndracth Crmie
WWelsh Govesninant

Zoo Licensing Act 1981 «ﬁ"‘}g 3
Appendix 11 Secretary of State’s Standards of Modern Zoo Practice/ E‘% Department

Inspection Report

Date of inspection: 23,24,25 May 2016 Date report completed: |25 May 2016

Name of applicant or current

licence holder: Pavid Gill

Name and address of zoo: South Lakes Safari Zoo Ltd

Broughton Road
Dalton-in -Furness

Postcode: | A15 8JR

Telno: 01229 466086 Licence Number:

Date of last formal inspection: }17/18 November 2015 Type of last formal inspection:  |Periodicalirenewal
Timing of next formal inspection: Type of next formal inspection:

Type of inspection Statutory composition of inspection team Please tick appropriate box

Section 10 Periodical: 2 Defra/Welsh Government nominees; 1 LA vet; option of up to 2 more from LA .. D

Section 11 Special: Any number of competent LA authorised appointees ...

Section 14(1)}{b) dispensation renewal under section 6(1A)(a) (where a direction has been made that
section 10 shall not apply):
Defra/Welsh Government NOMINEESS. ... o e D

Section 14{2) dispensation Periodical:
Defra/Welsh Government NOMINEEIS. ... e, D

For a licence inspection (Section 4(1A)b)) and a significant change inspection (Section 9A(8)) please
use the inspection form at Appendix 11A of the Standards.

“Name and desigr 1Spector(s ame of zoo represen
Anna Meredith MRCVS (Part 1) Karen Brewer

Nick Jackson (Part 2) Frieda Schrieher

Matthew Brash MRCVS (LA appointed vet) David Gill

When this form has been completed and signed the original must be sent to the local authority.

If the zoo is owned by the local authority, the focal authority must send a copy of the completed form
to Defra where the zoo is situated in England or to the Welsh Government, where the zoo is situated in
Wales.
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Preamble to inspectors’ report

Information and guidance about the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (ZLA) is available at
https:/Awww.gov.uk/government/policies/protecting-biodiversity-and-ecosystems-at-home-and-
abroad/supporting-pages/species-protection and
http:/iwales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/ahw/zoos/?lang=en

Preamble to inspectors’ report*, including any comments abolit the current dispensation status, if applicable.

This special inspection was called in order to assess progress and compliance with all conditions on
the current zoo licence (version 8 issued 10/3/18). In addition to the (EU} Directive conditions (1-6)
and Standard Conditions (8-11) there are 28 Additional Conditions {12-39). Of these additional
conditions, three {conditions 17 and 18 related to veterinary services) and 21 (related to public
walkways) were elevated to Directions on 18th December 2015. Some conditions (22,24,25,) had
already been complied with by 03/09/15, and/or are to be removed upon renewal (also 13,15,26).
Direction 21 had already been inspected for compliance by the Local Authority; walkways have been
demolished or closed off, and were not considered by the three inspectors at this mspec’non In
addition, Conditions 6-11 were not inspected.

The same three external (2 SoS List and 1 LA appointed) inspectors that performed the November
2015 periodicalirenewal inspection were used for this inspection to ensure consistency and
familiarilty with both the historical and current events and situations that led fo the additional
conditons and directions being applied. Only those sections of this form relevant o the conditions
inspected are completed. An ancillary special inspection report form detailing the
conditions/directions considered at this inspection is attached and forms part of this report. (The
relevant licence condition numbers are referred to by prefix C in the comments/clarifications)

Since the last inspection the management structure, including actual and planned directorships of
South Lakes Safari Zoo Ltd has changed several times. Several staff have left, including the health
and safety manager, or been demoted ( previous Animal Dept Manager/Director), and the zoo has
appointed a new Animal Dept Manager. Recruitment of a new Head of Animal Dept has begun, but
no appointments have yet been made, not least due to the uncertainty surrounding licence renewal.
Establishment of the charity, Safari Zoo Nature Ltd, intended to run the zoo in the future, is under
way (registered as a company) but not yet in place.

*this might include general background about the zoo (type of collection, size etc) and any relevant information or
comments from the pre-inspection audit
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Findings at inspection

Guidance note: Where possible a Yes, No or Not Applicable (N/A) answer should be given. Where not all
criteria are met for a particular question, comments and clarification should be made indicating where any
deficits occur. If appropriate, means of correction or improvement should be included as Conditions or
Recommendations under ‘Additional conditions’ or Additional space’ towards the end of the form.

Section 1A{c)(ii) ZLA 1981:
1.1. Are animals provided with a

Complete review with veterinary input has been undertaken and
amended diets are in place { C33 )

(a) if ‘yes’, is it properly controlled?

high standard of nutrition? Yes
1.2. Is food and drink that is supplied C33
appropriate for the Yes
species/individual?
1.3. Are supplies of food and water:
(a) kept hygienically? Yes
(b) prepared hygienically? Yes
{(c) supplied to the animal v

R . es8
hygienically?
1.4. Has natural feeding behaviour Not examined
been adequately considered to S

. elect
ensure that all animals have access
to food and drink?
1.5. Are feeding methods safe for C24, G36 .But lemurs observed jumping on to keepers at feeding,
staff and animals? Yes and conflict between lomur species at feeding
1.6. Is feeding by visitors permitted? |Yes 36,038 Observed lemur & penguin feeds. Public wear gloves for
- feeding fish to penguins. Ongoing concerns over risk of bite injury
No from lemurs. Observed tamarin jumping onto child with popcorn

Section 1A(c}{i) ZLA 1981:

2.1. Are the animals provided with
an environment well adapted to

C2. Management methods of free-ranging species continues to
lead to high level of traumatic injuries largely due to intraspecific
fighting, especially primates. Mortality records show animals
cantinue to die of hypothermia/exposure and emaciation.

parameters?

mesat the physical, psychological _and No C30.Baboon internal facilities have not been upgraded or replaced

social needs of the species to which or a developed programme of enrichment instituted.

they belong? C31. Africa field mammals have house access for shelter

2.2. Are the following environmental Not examined in any detail but noted during Inspection process

parameters appropriate: that ventilation very poor in tropical house with high ammonia
levels. Noted that indoor terrapins should be provided with UVB

(a) temperature? Select  lighting

(b) ventilation? Select

(c) lighting? Select

(d) noise levels? Select

{e) any other environmental Select
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2.3, Are there satisfactory measures

C3,C28. Perimeter fence Is primary barrier for free-ranging
species. Still has sections where vegetation not cut back or

safe?

in place to safe i e Yes
an?mals';o ly confine th regrowing that could aid escape, and.areas that need replacing
2 4. Do animal enclosures have N C31. Shelters for birds in Africa field being constructed on day 2 of
A. o A .
sufficient shelter and refuge areas? inspection
2.5. Do animal enclosures provide |y Except indoor baboon enclosure
sufficient space?
2.6. Are backup facilities for life coloet|1VOt EXaMined
support systems adequate?
2.7. Is the cleaning of the Not examined specifically but noted ammonia levels in troplcal
| accommoadation satisfactory? Selecfc house very high, exacerbated by poor ventilation .-
2.8. Is the standard of maintenance o , - _
adequate for: Select Building maintenance not examined .
(a) the: buildings?
See note above re perimeter fence which can still aid escapes in

{b) the fences? No |some areas

: ; Not examined
2.9. Is all drainage effective and Select

Section 1A(c)(ii) ZLA 1981:

Husbandry of free-ranging species is such that there is

unacceptably high rates of morbidity and mortality due to trauma

adequate?

3.1. Are the animals provided with a No and fighting, inability to closely monitor some individual animals'
high standard of animal husbandry? body condition and health,as confirmed by veterinary summary

; ; Not examined but during inspection noted lemur carrying injured
3. ﬁl Do anlmalls on (gjlip'aﬁgg the Select left arm, several with poor coat condition, lame duck with swollen
public appear in good health’ digit
3.3. Are observations of condition Yes
and health made and recorded?
3.4. Do animals receive prompt and See nofes re veterinary programme
appropriate attention when problems |Yes
are hoted?

. ' Walk-through areas with free-ranging species are still resulting in

2'56; Atr: deiﬂcéoscl:]rzsﬁaesgg?dssggl No unacceptably high levels of trauma/fights due to agonistic social
inﬁe:":cﬁon prgblems a¥e avoided? interactions, as confirmed by veterinary reports and summary
On-site facilities Not examined
3.6. Are catch-up and restraint Select
facilities adequate?

. . Blow pipe kept in locked cupbaord in vetroom, dart gun not seen
3.7_. is darting equipment Yes ‘
satisfactory?
3.8. Are on-site veterinary faciliies ||, __ Very good facilities
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Veterinary care
Section 1A{c)(ii) ZLA 1981:

3.9. Are the animals provided with a
documented and maintained

C17,C18. The veterinary programme has been reviewed and
improved. Veterinary visits are now more regular (2-3 times a
week, total 3-4 hrs on average/week by Rick Browne; once a
month by Andrew Greenwood) and documentation and
record-keeping greatly improved and kept up to date. But also
additional comments below re implementation and interventions

programme of preventative and Yes i
curative veterinary care and for improvement of welfare
autrition?
3.10. Is there a system for the New system: Monthly summary signed by all vets and veterinary
S . L summary produced Jan-April 2016 for review at vet meating in
regular review of clinical and Yes June 2016
pathological records?
; ; Improved since last inspection, but notes by consultant vet very
félg%éri;ﬂgropnate veterinary Yes brief, e.g. do not give anaesthetic drug dosages used
3. 12. Are medicines kept and Room is too hot and, although locked away, antibiotics etc not
L P No keptin refrigerator.
dispased of correctly?
3.13. Are controlled drugs used and Pentobarbitone kept in locked gun cupboard
o : : Y
recorded satisfactorily? es
3.14. Are appropriate antidotes
. N/A
available?
3.15. Are post mortem examination v
. es
arrangements satisfactory?
Isolation and containment
3.16. Is adequate reserve Not examined
accommodation available for
isolation of animals for:
Select
(a) assessment? eiec
(b) treatment? Select
(c) recovery? Select
(d) quarantine (where required)? Select
Sanitation and control of disease C4, G19. Not examined directly but verbal reports of much
Section 1A(e) ZLA 1981: improved vermin control and reduction in rodent numbers.
' Dedicated extra 0.5FTE member of staff now allocated to rodent
3.17. Are satisfactory measures in control. No evidence of rodent presence seen in food store
place to prevent the intrusion of
pests and vermin into the zoo Yes
premises?
3.18. Does it appear that general See above
sanitation and pest control are
effective? Yes
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4.1. Do the accommodation and
management regimes encourage
normal behaviour patterns and
minimise any abnormal behaviour,
taking into account current enrichment
and husbandry guidelines?

Yes

Social groups, free-ranging exhibits and free-flight aviaries have
many behavioural benefits. .

4.2, Are animals of social species
normally maintained in compatible
social groups?

Yes

5.1. Are the animals handled only by -

Yes for direct handling eg at feeding events, But visitors can have

excessively stressful?

or under the supervision of Yes direct contact with free-ranging species which may be
appropriately experienced staff? unsupervised :

5.2. Is physical contact between

animals and the public consistent Yes

with the animals’ welfare?

5 3. Are interactions between the The records and veterinary interview reveal that there is a ongoing
animals such that they are not No high level of inter- and intra-specific fighting and trauma, including

injuries that result in death or euthanasla

6.1. Can the zoo demonstrate a
knowledge of, and compliance with,
the regulations covering transportation
of animals, and provide copies of
certificates fo show compliance when
transportation has occurred?

Select

Not examined

6.2. Can the zoo demonstrate that:

i} transport and movement
equipment is in good order?

Select

ii) facilities suitable for lifting, crating
and transportation of all the types of
animals kept within the zoo 1o
destinations both inside and outside
the zoo are readily available?

Select

iify catching and transportation
techniques take account of the
animal's temperament and escape
behaviour in order to minimise injury,
damage and distress?

Select

iv) adequate provision is made for
the animal’s and the public’s safety
and well-being while the animal is
being transported or kept away from
the zoo?

Select

Not examined
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Section 1A(a) ZLA 1981:

7.1. Is the zoo participating in at
least one of the following:

(i) research from which conservation
henefits accrue to species of wild
animals?

Select

(i} training in relevant conservation
skills?

Select

(iii) the exchange of information
relating to the conservation of
species of wild animals?

Select

iv) where appropriate, breeding of
wild animals in captivity?

Select

(v) where appropriate, the
repopulation of an area with, or the
reintroduction into the wild of, wild
animals?

Select

Not examined

Section 1A(b} ZLA 1981:

7.2. Is the zoo promoting public
education and awareness in relation
to the conservation of bicdiversity, in
particular by providing information
about the species of wild animals
kept in the zoo and their natural
habitats?

Select

Not examined

7.3. Where appropriate are animals
managed in a way consistent with
the conservation needs of the
species, (such as exchange
between zoos, accommodation to
encourage natural behaviour and
breeding etc)?

Select

Not examined

7.4. Are on-site education facilities
adequate for the resources of the
collection?

Select

Not examined

7.5. Are the conservation efforts
adequate for the resources of the
collection?

Select

Not examined

7.6. Are the research efforts
adequate for the resources of the
collection?

Select

Not examined

7.7. 1s captive breeding properly
managed?

Select

Not examined
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Section 1A(d) ZLA 1981: No concerns generally with escape from enclosures except
prairie-dogs (C29), but the issue of the perimeter fence as a
8.1. Are there satisfactory measures primary barrier for free-ranging species has not been fully
in place to prevent the escape of No complied with (C28), although progress has been made
animals?
8.2. Are there satis‘.factor'yr neasures
in place to be taken in the event of
. Yes
any escape or unauthorised release
of animals?
8.3. Are escape drills carried out four €23
times a year, recorded and regularly
reviewed (at least two drills should  |Yes
include the escape of a Category 1
animal where present)?
8.4. Will the perimeter deter But in many areas vegetation is still growing up and over the
unaiuthorised entry and aid the Yes perimeter fence, and in areas it needs replacing(C28)
confinement of zoo stock?
8.5. Do stand-off barriers appear Seloct Not examined
adequate?
8.6. Are adequate warning signs Not examined
! Select
provided?
8.7. Are prohibited areas Not examined
. . Select
appropriately signed?
8.8. Are exits clearly marked and Not examined
: Select
accessible?
8.9. Do public areas walkways and Not examined, see comments re C21
9.1 . |
buildings appear safe? Select
8.10. Are trees regularly inspected Not examined generally but noted one large tree at new path
a;‘l d appropriate remedial action down to new picnic area by giraffe enclosure has had major
taken? Select cutting of roots at one side down to a significant depth, which
a ' raised concern that this will kill the tree andfor destabilise it
making it a safety hazard
8.11. Have appropriate risk C24, C36. Risk assessments have been carried out, but the
a.ssessments for direct contact by inspectors observed and noted an ongoing risk of bite injuries and
A . A zoonotic disease from feeding and direct contact with primates
’gﬁ?publsc with animals been carried |yqq without gloves
8.12. Are the special safet C38.Appropriate signage advising no feeding of animals( see
re uirgm ents fgr Walk-thro{lgh or Apendix 6 SSSMZP) other than at designated feeding events are
d 9 h h exhibits adequatel in place in the walk-through areas, and feeding events {lemurs}
FIV%— roug ot equately No are staffed (6 present at the observed event). However, the public
met? are still frequently disregarding instructions and direct contact
remains such that there is a risk of injury or Zoconosis.

DEF-ZIF (05/13)
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Section 1A{f) ZLA 1981:

9.1. Are there up-to-date records of
the zoo’s collection, including
records of.

ZIMS. Records much impraoved and now generally very good

(i) the numbers of different animals? |Yes
(ii) acquisitions, births, deaths, Yes
disposals and escapes of animais?
(iii} the causes of any such deaths? |Yes
(iv) the health of the animals? Yes
9.2. Are daily diaries maintained But 2015 diaries, which proved so useful to the inspection team at
and do they contain appropriate, Yes the November 2015 inspection have disappeared - requirement
information? is they are archived securely on site for 6 years
9.3. Are animal stock records clear |,
es
and up-to-date?
9.4, Are annual stock records
completed in the correct format and  |Yes
submitted to the local authority?
9.5. Are animal source and Yes ZIMS
destination records kept?
9.6. Are archived records secure?  {Yes See above comment re 2015 diaries

10.1. Do staff numbers and training

C27.Training and enrolments on future training courses/events

system in place?

of staff appear adequate? Yes has improved and is funded by zoo. But see notes
10.2. Is the management structure C39. See notes
and organisation of staff adequate to N
) ) 0
ensure compliance with the
Standards at all times?
10.3. Are effective risk assessments C29 Risk assessment for prairie dogs is not adequate as it does
carried out where appropriate? No not address the escape risk and required depth of external fence
10.4. Has an ethical review process Minutes were available for ERP meeting on 27th March 2016 but
been established and implemented? Yes vet (RB) was not invited and had no knowledge of meeting
i : i Not examined
10.5. Are public tmfet facilities Select
adeguate and serviced?
i iliti Not examined
10.6. Are parking facilities Select
adequate?
10.7. Is a First Aid policy and Not examined
accident reporting and recording Select
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11.1. Is electrical equipment
routinely serviced?

Not examined

Select
11.2. Have fire precautions been Not examined
agreed and implemented?

Select
11.3. Is refuse and clinical waste Not examined
disposed of correctly?

Select
11.4. Are the required needs of Not examined
disabled visitors met?

Select

12.1. Is the current licence or a copy
on public display at each public
entrance?

Not examined

Select
12.2. Is adequate Public Liability Not examined
Insurance current?
Select
12.3. Have any Additional licence See ancillary report. Conditions 28, 29, 30,31,38, 39 not met by
ditions been met? specified date
con C27 partly met but compliance date Is 13th August 2016
C31 partly met re shelter for African Field but written protocol not
NG produced See notes
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Additional space

The following space is provided for:

» additional notes and comments on the answers to the earlier questions

» recommendations {other than in respect of grant or refusal of a licence and any specific conditions
recommended for a licence) including those based on comments already made to earlier questions

« any general remarks which the inspecting team may wish to record

The inspectors were impressed with, and grateful for, the co-operative approach of the staff team,
and the evident progress that has been made in many areas since the last inspection, including the
appointment of a new Animal Manager. They were particularly impressed with the highly motivated,
dedicated and enthusiastic keeping staff, and the evident desire of the staff and management {feam
to move forward to develop and progress the zoo following the previous inspection. The inspectors
recognise the many very positive aspects of the zoo and the public's experience.

However, it was evident that the robust management and staffing structure and the specific
requirements for this (condition 39) are not in place, ultimately leading to ongoing serious concerns
over animal welfare, public safety and potential escapes. While recognising the very complex nature
of events and situations, including future plans, leading to the current status of the zoo at the time
of inspection, the inspectors' findings indicate that failure to comply with condition 39 is at the root of
the majority of the ongoing issues. The inspectors were very disappointed that many conditions had
not been complied with, and with the number of problems detected during the inspection, resulting in
the zoo failing to comply with many of the SSSMZP.See ancillary report for further details.
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Inspecting team’s recommendation to the local authority

Having inspected {(name of zoo)

South Lakes Safari Zoo

on: May 23,24,25 2016

the inspecting team make the following recommendation:

¢ it is recommended that a licence be refused

. Please tick appropriate box

¢ it is recommended that the above collection be licensed in accordance with the ZLA 1981

subject to the conservation measures in section 1A

« it is recommended that the above collection be licensed in accordance with the ZLA 1981
subject to the conservation measures in section 1A and the following Additional Conditions
(N.B Additional Conditions must be clearly worded so as to be enforceable and a

timescale applied for compliance)

+ it is recommended that the following alterations be made to the above collection’s:
ticence conditions ..........oceceeene o rerereeeterreerr e e b ey e e tateeeteaaeeeanaaannrerra R SR e er e e [___l

Additional Conditions (if appropriate)

Inspector(s) signature(s)

Date signed

/ s

31/05/2016

31.05.20186

1 tmee e Vot Hed-Cert Zoo Med MRCYS

31 May 2016
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The Data Protection Act 1998 — Fair Processing Notice

The purpose of this Fair Processing Notice is to inform you of the use that will be made of your personal data,
as required by the Data Protection Act 1998.

The local authority in England (or in Wales as the case may be) is the data controller in respect of any
personal data that you provide when you complete this zoo inspection form. The information that you provide
may be used by the local authority in its consideration of issuing or amending a zoo licence in accordance with
the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (ZLA). The local authority may be required to release information, including
personal data and commercial information, on request under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004
(EIRs) or the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA). However, local authorities will not permit any
unwarranted breach of confidentiality nor act in contravention of their obligations under the Data Protection
Act 1998 (DPA).

Where the zoo, to which this inspection report applies, is owned by the local authority, the local authority must
send a copy of the completed form to Defra (in accordance with section 13(2) of the ZLA) where the zoo is
situated in England, or to the Welsh Government where the zoo is situated in Wales. Defra or the Welsh
Government {(as the case may be) may use the information contained in the form to ensure that local
authorities are carrying out their duties correctly in accordance with the ZLA.

Defra and the Welsh Government are also subject to the EIRs and the FOIA and so may be required to
release information, including personal data and commercial information, on request. However, as above,
Defra and the Welsh Government will not permit any unwarranted breach of confidentiality nor act in
contravention of their obligations under the DPA.

DEF-ZIF (05/13) Page 13 of 13






APPENDIX No, B

g jo | abey

SSEISIP
10 X8I 8Y) acnpal 0} f8pI0 U] ‘Pas||in ag 1SNW a)Sem [BLLIUE JO) UONED0]
abelo)s ajeudoidde sAnRUIS)E UE PUB PaAOLIS) 94 1SNW JIGIYXD
Uim palidwod UBOLY SU3 Ut deay Hanw ey JSINSSS 8Uk JO §'Z Yim 8oueplosoe U] q029

(BE UONPUCD & SJUSLULIOS

g9s ) seopoe.d pue sinjonus Juswsbauew o) enp AjejusWEpUN) S| SIY ] "UoRRIBWS puR gluiayodAysinsodxs sj1E19p 10 151 2UI0B4S JO) UOMIPUCD 58 - UONDBI|GD B} O] SBOIAISS
0} enp suyieap Guiobuc ale siay] LOIIPPE U| "SIEBA (Z 18B| oU3 Jaao pabueyoun A||egussse s siy: (gy) 184 8y} Jo AJEULEIaA 10 AIGAIBD 8L} 0} ‘BLIWEIBGI paUlep ALES PUE paAadL
LoISSILUPE 3U) Jy "SpodoIoBwl U 9SEISIP |BJUSP PUB J004 pue ‘sejewind ul Bunyyfy o) enp seunlu onewney Ajjeioadss " ue quewB|dun puB eoorId 00Z P05 JO SPIEPUEIS UIGPOW 3U} O}
‘Alpiglow (snogosjui-uou) sausaasd yim Ajsblie| sjesp ||3s ‘Auenbal pue $sa00ud Jo sulisl Ll Ajusoal paacsdull | dojaasp 'Aresseosu palsap Se S0ApE [BUOISSa0ld YoNS JaLo 1o/pue
yonw ybnowyte ‘swieiBold Aleulalaa aul Jeyl suiasuod Suiofuo aaey s10108dsul SU] ISASMOR "UYM Pal|dLuIon JOSIAPE AIRULISYBA $,007 3U) Ylm uoouniuoo ul 4snwl sojesado 8y <)%

‘ABuIplocoe psuigluiEW puE panlodal ‘paalfe aq (018 sunnol
‘wrd ‘uoneuoeA ‘[oues s)seied spnoul 0] ) 2180 Jo swwe:bord
uagpm Supnsel B pue uepeUUSIEA Buinsuod syl yim uonouniuos
ynm paldwos Ul Usepapun a9 1snw swwelfosd Aleunsian suU Jo maIAsl Y Fa%e)

‘BulaLue [ewiue ey o) Joud syeem ¢ Auoyny Buisusin

By} 0] FEPIRAIC) DUR PBAIS0S! sem BuliEs aU) s1aym SJUSWIYSIqEIsse
pue sejep Buipnjoul pajiejep aq 1SN aouuadxa Jeu; usy) asuauadxe
868|090 JousiedsS 18 wyZnQg Uo pajioius omg pue ‘sjuens Bujulel) pue sdousiiom snoyea snolnald aAey LS 1| "eqls uo Buiallle [elwlue snoplezey sy o] Joud 00

12 S0UBPUSYE O PaMaIABIUI Sladaay Wol sUodal [BaUan ‘UonoadsUi 18| 5oUIS SBWIUER SNOPIEZEY POALLIR AMBU ON | Ajuowiny BUISUSO 8U O} PEPIEAIC] B4 1SNUI BUILIRI] SI] JO SDUSPIAT e

‘saoads sy Buipjoy Apeasle uonas||oo e e Buuen

papJoaal Jo polad e oflspun jsnw {asuauadxs isad $ RIS a0
Uil)m JoU Jo) uoloe(jos 8yl Ul prey Aisnoimard Jou [(dZINSSS sW 4o

Z| xipuaddy @as) uonesyobales lewiuy shoplezeH ay) jo | Aobaje)
Ul paIs)| [BWIUR AUB) $8195dS SNOPJEZEL PaALLE AMBL LJIM JI0M OUm

uolzoadsul 15| 9oUIS SIELUIUE SNORJBZEY PaALE Almau ON UEIS B JZINSSS 84110 |01 puB LG udeiBried yjm 89UBpIoadE U] 710
| . S9JON | .o uopIpuod | ON:
007 UBJES SSYET UINOS :00Z JO BWEN w 910¢/50/€C _ :uonoadsul 10 s1eq

uodaus Auejioue uonosadsul je1dadg

TP FY



g Jo g abed

{91/50) ¥vIS-43a

‘007 Ul 2134MES|8 Pasnoyal ‘Yum paldwag

PUE 4IUN POSCOUA LB Ul MOUS UO paLlinal aq Ajue jSnu
PUE MOUS JO PEAOLISI A|BIBIPSUILL 3 ISNW BPUSOEUE Bl) ‘HZNSSS
aU} o g xipusddy JO #1°9 PUE L1'9 ydesGered ypm 20U2pIC00E U]

Bge0

Lyl pajdiogd

“jtiey puB pejUSINOCP 3G JSNW SpewW

sabugyo au) pue SIBIP [ 40 SPI0DSY N0 BBLLIED 8q 1SNUL "SIUBYNSUOS
ABULS}SA BU) LM UCTIBYNSUOD Ul ‘s5108ds |2 SSOI0E UDRIANU PUE SI31D
3O MBIARI TN B JZINSSS B3 IO §1°) PUB Z}) 171 Wi SOUBPIOSOE U]

€Ed

-JUSDIAS 10U SEM SS3LY} JO alnjonys/ubIsap sy} INg- S18Y3YS JO pBAUSWLIOD pey UoNonsuod ey}

palLLIojUl a1em siopadsul ‘g Aep uQ "ojqejlens Ja}ays 1o Buiyaled ou Bulaq essy) eydsap {Jespoun ssao0ad BupeLl
UOISIO8P PUB B[EOSaLI 10BXS) PSY UBGULY SU) O} paAcil Usaq pey {19162 apes ‘quioy *siql paldes ‘auBID PAUMOLD
“%I0)8) plIq JO SSI0ads [BIOASS 18U} uonoadsul a4} 40 | Aep uo pelou SEM Y -[00GI0I0 LSYILM OU S| 818U} INg “B|qeIdadde
sl yoIum ¢ (pray vl sae38ys ying ou o ) Joyays Jo} 8SNOL 8} 0] $58008 pajjoiuod-iadedy aaey piol 2olY Ul S[SLILLEY

Auoyiny Bulsusdr su) o} Papieasuc) Adoo

B pUE ‘0} PAIBUPE '3PBUI 34 ISNW PIASIYDE 3q [ SIL} MOY Bujreeop
(0001010 USTIIM ¥ "SSWIA (2 18 B|qRI[EAE SPBU &g JSNW Pl3l] UBSWY
alp) 0] SSa00E BUIABY SIELUUE 3Y) |8 JO LOREPOLIUCIDE aU) i0} aseds
ans Bupiaoid Ja)Bys ‘dZINSSS BUY 10 Z'Z Wi 80UBRIcIIE U]

L€D

-uonepowlLIcaoe pauueld ay} Jog

guaweabuelie Suplom pUB SINKINIS JIEX8 8l O abps|mouy ou ped Jefieuew JeLIUER 34} pue “aA pue YBIS [euiue
Aq sseo01d uBisap suj oWl Jndul Jo %IE| ‘suelBeprsue|d UayiLm DU 912M 3J911 INg ‘LUOKEPOLULIOIOE uoogeq eopul
J9B1g) epia0id 01 @snoy oulyl jusoelpe a4} Jo ped Buidojassp UO PBUE]S SBY JOM freunuyaid Alap “upm pal|dLLuoD 10N

-fuipas) Ja|eos

pug Joyl mens deep ‘6o usuioluD 4O swuesSoid padojassp e 1oL
MOJLE OS[E JSNW S1aend 1ocpul 8y L ‘aouepinB Apuegsny pasiuboos)
WBLND 3L Jo5W 0) pave|dal Jo pepesBdn 8q 1snw SUOOYEQ 8y} 10}
SER|IDB] JOOPUL BYF JZINSSS SW 0 Y PUB E'Y ‘Z'Z UYim aduepIoooe U

0gd

1eBeuell [BuUR JusLno Bl o} Yo| Ajabie| usaq sey Ysel

s1y 10 soueulopad ‘Bueldas pasu jeyl 18y} pauiiuBp! SUCI0aS OS|e 9ie al1ayL -adeosa pie pinoo jey; ‘Buimosbis)

s1 1Nq N0 U] SBY 10 HOB( NI USG 194 jJ0U sey uonelebaa s1aym SUOHOSS seU [[AS S18 alay] SpEL u99sq 58y
ssaBoid eoubis ubnouyy “salweds bubuel-sal) a1 1o} BLUEd Aewiud sy} s1 a0usy 18jBUILSL “LIM paidwos 1eN

-Buideoss WOy slewiue Juansad o) 3oeq 1N Way 8g 1snus

saus) ssjeluuad sy Jeau 1o Bulbueyleao saah pue saysnq 'sqriys

Ity ‘Buious) oujos]e 8y} JO 1ESI0 UBWSL ABY) SINSUS G} PAUIEIUEW puB
3orQ N9 3( JSAW 32U Jsjewusd ay) o} Auwixoid Ul seal; pue saysnyg
'sqruys ‘uonelaben (B JZWSSS Ul 0 6Z'8 PUE L'g UM BILERICOSE U]

820

‘gpo0 pedAsy B EIA 8OUBHUS LM PS3O0| B9 shemje pinoys 3 jey; Buteq |ooojoid sy sydsap
‘uado apim sem pieogdno unf au Bulueiuod Woad aL o JOOp a1 ‘uooadsu) au} 1 JsABMOH LM pandwosn

. ‘maIAS) Lodn Auoyny Buisuson

oy 0} papiaoid 9q puE S|Seq AHESA & U0 Pamainsl aq jsnll I
‘sasiweald au) 10} JaACT suedll sjeudosdde pue sasisaid pasuady)
sy} J0 Jelawiiad By} JO SPISINO [eWiUE Ue 10 adesse auy ¢} ssucdss) Wl
AlgngzIsuoD BUQUIND U} Y)im uosiel| Jo} jo2cj0ad ushum pue paalbie

€20

UE 9q 1SN 216l SZWSSS 8U 40 Y58 PUB 0Z'8 LilM 80UBPIDIe Uj

uonIpu




g jo ¢ abey

‘|enusiod [|ng 83 @siiea) pue ssei60.d 0] 00z sIY] 8]qEUS pUE Aj@Alo8e SeNss] 8%ay] $salppe

[ 12w abueyo eouBis inoge Buiig o) Ajige sy} &g a4sU} ||1w ‘JBumo ey Jo Ajuepuadepul seoiaeld Juslno
Moainal Of B|qe §| 1By peluaald; Ausdoud s1 aumongs uswabeuew e uaym Alug "esayl abusjieyo 1o edusnyul
AleAnsays 03 1o aut pue Juswabeuew juaund Bupnjour ‘yeis AQ Aiqeul syl Jojpug (SHuqiyxs paxiw Guibues-aaly
a1) Aydosoyd pue sawibal uswaebeuew/Aupuegsny JeLue ay} yjog o} Ajjziuswepuny snp aie sadesss |epusiod
pue A1ajes ognd “adejam [EWiLE JOAD SUIgoU0d snouas BuioBuo auy ey uoluido pue sBulpuy siopedsul au s

SPIBPURG 8 SIBIS JO

Alje10ss 8l upm sous|[dWos S| pUB SBIYANIER 9)S-U0 SH B '007 a4}
10 19npUCD 241 Joy Auoune Buisuso ay) ¢} apgisuodsal Ajng aq Jsnw
pue {15 Asjuglg plaBE JIA) JOUMO BY 4O JUSPUSdapU| SUDISIDap BB
LOYINE PUE AJge sU; ‘007 84} o Buuund sy Jjog Ayjgisuodsal

Aep 0} ABp ypm (JaBeuUB J0|USS J0) 10108110 SWI-iN) paousuadxa j[ilelg}
“UHMm pay|dwoD JoN pue pajenb A|gEuns Jusjaduios 8 apnjou] JSNU: 2IMangs meu siyt 680
"PONSS] &4 0} S3UFD|| MU
B MO|[E 0} Jopio U] ‘Auoyine Buisusl 941 jo uooBisies syl o) aoejd
Ui &g jsnw aumenis Bulels pue Juawsbeuew 1SNGo: B 'SPIRPURIS
‘yum paldwos JoN S, 21815 10 AIBJ2I08S 33 10 01 Uoioss yim Aidwaod o Japio u) BED
‘abed xoogsoed $,002
B UO 931 AsyUoW Jueoal B Jo Jodsy ‘4o 3l pusy o} way) Buuinbal pue syusled pue pliyo wog Jo sseasip ul Bupnsal "SAEP | UL Auoyiny (2067 8y} 0} pelodal a4 1snu S[ELUUE Wol)
“uoodod Jo uoped pisy B ssa3oe 0 Jdwisne ue ul ABBng e Ul Jo|ppoy 8 oo Buidwn{ ugewe) e pue ‘se|qe) JUBInE]se) | SICHSIA G} sounul 108U 1B 'dZINSSS 941 40 #|°8 Ylm S80UBDIOD0E U]
: y ‘Aoyiny Buisusdl ay) o) pepseauny
Joopino uo Bums sinwe| ‘Buipss; pesiaadns Buunp oignd syy ojuo Buidsesd sinws| peaesqo sicloadsu) syl J
. o X 8 3snw ueld uckoe pue Modsl sy Jo Ados v 'seunful pue sauq
sojewud Auejnonied ‘S|BLIUER Yiim 10BILOD 1084P WOl 211gnd au) 0} UCISS|WSURS 9529SIP JJ0U00Z pue‘saun(u; Jayio s1eUILe 0} pe1dope UBI UCHOE UE PUE J0 PALLED 8] 11U S|eWILE Aq
pue sajq jo ysu snolies BujoBuo Ue 53 aisul meinal g sidsap 124] DaWaou0o Alea uiewal siojpedsul 8y "senss] | opond ay; jo siaquisw o) AInful 10 S8 JO YSU U] 0 MBIAS) USHLIM [N
BuiAapun ay; SSeJppRE 10U $80D pue saunlul pue sajq ajeulule 0} ejenbapeul S| INg 1IN0 PajLieD uesq SBy malral Y B 'dZNSSS a4 10 9 xipusaddy jo #1'g ydeibered upm souepiosoe U| 8E0D
suedioped
|12 Aq Liom aq jsnw saao|B aalosiold puB JUSWSSSSSE ¥S1 UM B
- 10 103[QNs BU3 69 1SNW YSY PUB 1BSW MBI SBA[CAU| 1B} Sjewue Buipsa)
"san0|B mnoynm uinbuad e Buipss) olgnd 0 Jequswi Jo 88ed | "o pooy Buuedsid oyqnd sy o siequiaw BuialeAd) Suoisses pesiuetio
}00ga9e 5,002 U0 abew jusoal ‘Jeramo pagl uinBuad peaiasqo Bulnp saa0)B Buneam onand |y “Uim psidio) Aug ‘JZINSSS Ul io 011 pue ¢'| sydesbesed yim souepioaoe u| 9eD

wsYns s1 puod 0} Jauieq aousy MOT Uim paldwon

‘Ul pafly Jo angnd sy of o
na[ess AjSIBIpSLILL] B4 SN AYjiDE BPUOSBUY JULLINS S} Ul P]EI0|
puod 2y} ‘dZINSSS 8Ll IO #1°g PUBR ‘EL'E '9'E UM SOUBPIODTE U|

| uopipuod




9 jo y abed (91/50) ¥VIS-430

"aieflom ELUIUE puE Aeyes olignd Lioq sinsua o} pajels
d 01 sUISBp OU aABY SiCioadsul 94| “slelam |Bulue pool sjowoid ues pue ‘olgnd ay} 1o} soueyadxa [puojeInpe

pue paBeuews Apedoud aq Isnw Asyrng ‘es Jad sugiyxs ysns Hqiyol
waj se yons saads ajewud jjews Buuiejuod siqiuxs ybnosyem ey} saibe pue sbpsemoude siojoadsul sy

sjqeAolus pue aagsod Aiea B 8 pue AjaAloays AJ3n HI10M UBD SIN

aseds Jeuonippy



g jo g abey

Lo e sejoll [eUORIpRY |




a jo g abed {(91/50) ¥viS-4304




LRefne 2
APPENDIX No. C

South Lakes Safari Zoo
Assessment of ZLA compliance during Special Inspection of 23" to 25" May 2016

Introduction and background

As part of a Special Inspection carried out at South Lakes Safari Zoo Between May 23 and
May 25™ 2016 by Professor A Meredith, Mr N Jackson and Dr M Brash, the inspectors were
asked to evaluate the existing management structure of the zoo, and whether additional
condition 32 in the November 2015 inspection report (condition 39 on the zoo license) had
been met.

This condition stated;

in order to comply with section 10 of the Secretary of State’s Standards, a
robust management and staffing structure must be in place to the satisfaction
of the licensing authority, in order to allow a new licence to be issued, This
new structure must include a competent, suitably qualified and experienced
full-time Director (or Senior Manager) with day to day responsibility for the
running of the Zoo, the ability and authority 1o make decisions independent of
the owner (Mr David Stanley Gill), and must be fully responsible to the
licensing authority for the conduct of the Zoo, all its on-site activities and its
compliance with the Secretary of State’s Standards.

[Timescale 22" May 2016]

Furthermaore, in recommending that this condition be applied to the licence, the inspection
team had written in November 2015;

The decision by the inspection team to recommend that a new licence for South Lakes Safari
Zoo should not be granted at its due date, unless a Condition regarding the management
structure has been complied with, is not taken lightly. It must be emphasised that the
inspectors are keen to see the Zoo develop and thrive in line with modern zoo standards. The
inspectors commend Mr David Gill for his initial decision to step back from the running of the
Zoo and to concentrate on its conservation role, but do not believe that at the time of the
inspection, or subsequently, sufficient progress has been made in this respect, and note that
this decision was subsequently reversed during the compilation of this final report. This is no
longer a small zoo and it now houses a large and diverse number of species. Suitable
management processes must be in place before a new licence is issued to enable the Zoo to
meet all its legal obligations, particularly in respect of Sections 3, 8, 9 and 10 of the SSSMZP.
These have been areas of concern and flagged as issues repeatedly over a number of vears
at previous zoo inspections. The inspection of November 2015 has highlighted 32 Conditions
that the inspectors believe must be applied to the licence. This is g considerable number of
Conditions for a zoo of this size, and many of these result from the repeated failure to
implement fully previous Conditions, thus aggravating the situation and determining the
inspectors’ position. Of particular concern to the inspectors is the fact that as this zoo grows,
it relies heavily on the owner’s experience implementing out of date practices and refusing to
implement modern zoo practices, In the inspectors’ opinion this has resulted in animal
welfare issues, a higher than expected mortality rate amongst the animals, higher than
expected incidents {such as injuries to the public from animals), and places both staff and the
public potentially in danger. The new management structure must include a competent,

1



suitably qualified and experience full-time Director {or Senior Manager). This individual will
have day to day responsibility for the running of the Zoo, will be able to make decisions
independent of the owner and will be fully responsible to the licensing authority for the
conduct of the Zoo and all its on-site activities. This will be a full-time post and therefore
cannot be someone who will spend large parts of the year absent from the site.

At the previous inspection in November 2015, the inspectors were informed that Mr D Gill
was taking a step back from running the zoo, and had now put in place two new directors C
Fischer, and F Schreiber. However whilst writing their November report, the inspectors were
informed that C Fischer was no longer a director.

At the February 2016 licensing committee, where one of the inspectors, M Brash, was
present, the LA were informed that the new management team was in place including Karen
Brewer, David Armitage, John Mclntosh, and Frieda Schrieher., ' '

Special Inspection process : _ . :
As part of the Special Inspection process, the inspectors examined in detail whether a new
management team had been put in place by the required deadline of May 22" 2016, as
specified in the condition. The inspection team wanted to be satisfied that the new
management structure was now effectively managing the zoo in such a way that it was now -
complying, or making concerted efforts and reasonable attempts to comply with, the
Secretary of State’s Standards of Modern Zoo Practice “SSSMZP” under the Zoo Licencing
Act 1981 {as amended} “the Act”.

In particular, the inspectors wanted to be satisfied that any management structure putin
place had led to changes to the zoo such that the observed welfare issues and public safety
issues (see November 2015 inspection report) had been resolved or minimised to a
reasonable level.

Areas of the zoo were also viewed as part of the Special Inspection. This was to check and
verify whether conditions applied had been complied with. Details of these findings can be
found in the inspection report. It must be stressed that this was nota full inspection, and
that therefore not all parts of the zoo were looked at.

During the Special inspection, the inspection team interviewed staff, including:

Karen Brewer (CEO} (KB)

David Armitage {Animal manager)} {DA)}

Charlotte Drummond(keeper for approximately seven months
Tony Sayle ( Keeper since January 2016) (TS)

Kim Banks { keeper for five years) (KB)

Rick Browne ( Collection vet) (RB}

Frieda Schreiber { Veterinary coordinator) (FS)

pavid Gill { Owner and License Holder) (DG)

i U o

(For the rest of this report names have been shortened to initials)



The initial conversation carried out was with KB who explained the existing management
structure, Further information regarding the current management structure was provided
by DA and DG during the process.

The management structure related directly to the animal collection {ie excluding retail and
catering), as explained to the inspectors over the course of the inspection was as follows;

Karen Brewer CEO

David Armitage (Animal Manager)
Senior Keepers (e.g. Mark, Jaz and Kim)
Keepers etc.

However, KB also explained that, as DA was still relatively new, DG was still very much hands
on managing the collection and DA was heavily reliant on him. DA further explained that DG
was mentoring him, and training him. DA explained he was on a 6 month probation period.

DG later informed us that after the November inspection, the then animal manager had
been removed from post as DG and KB felt that many of the negative results of that
inspection where due to that animal manager’s failings. DG felt that he had personaily had
to come back to help the zoo (Qu} ‘get up and running” and * back to where we should be’.
He explained that he felt that DA, despite his long and broad experience, was (Qu) ‘old
school” and needed guidance.

Potential future management structures were also explained to the inspectors, although
there was no written formalised evidence of the strengthening of any future management
team for the zoo. A sketched diagram was produced explaining the potential future
structure of the ownership of the site, and how a potential Charitable Company could run
the zoo. However this appeared siill to be in a development phase. A potential future Zoo
curator was proposed, however he was unable to commit at this time. Other potential
members of staff were stilt being interviewed.

However;

1. Although DA had been nominally appointed Animal Manager, he accepted that he was
not empowered, and that DG was still making all the decisions.

2. The previous Animal Manager was now working as a cat keeper only, and held no
responsible position. This was considered a retrograde step by the inspectors, as they had
heen impressed by her progress at the November inspection.

3. We were informed by KB that DA was to be made a director of SLSZ Ltd ( along with KB,
FS, DG), however DA seemed surprised by this news and had not seen or signed any
agreement.

4, KB, DA and DG all accepted that the zoo was being run, at this time by DG.



During the process the inspectors did not have confidence that the animal manager, DA,
was managing the collection. On a number of occasions he was obviously not ‘in the loop’
with regards to decisions being made for the animal collection.

For example;

1. He was unable to explain the design for the new baboon housing. He acknowledged that
had it been up to him, he would ‘not be making the new accommodation out of scrap’. He
also acknowledged that the baboon house could have been completed on time for the
inspection.

2. He informed the inspectors that the movement of birds to the Africa field, without the
provision of adequate shelter, was carried out without his knowledge.

The zo0 is clearly being managed directly by DG and the way that the collection is being
~ managed still has a profoundly negative impact on the welfare of the animals kept in this
collection, and continues to act as a potential danger to the public. -

The above existing management structure of SLSZ is not, in the inspectars opinion,
sufficieritly robust to ensure that the SSSMZP are being delivered. Nor does it fulfil the
requirements of the condition applied by the inspectors back in November 2015.
Information supporting this statement comes from the interviews with the staff, from the
records examined and observations made whilst walking around the zoo.

Conclusion

Condition 39 has not been complied with, and as it stands, unless circumstances change,
the LA should not renew the license, as recommended in the report in November 2015.

Further information

A. Veterinary records

More comprehensive veterinary records are now maintained for the animals. There is a
monthly summary sheet of animals that have died, or been treated, and a four month
summary had been prepared for the inspectors.

Mortality and causes of mortality
1. From examining the previous year’s stock list, the inspectors noted that the mortality rate

is still high. Over the period of time January 2015 to December 2015 there have been 146
deaths. This is made up of approximately half mammals, half birds and some reptiles.



2. During the first four months of 2016, i.e. from Jan 1% to April 31%, a further sixty one
animals have died (50) or had to be euthanased (11).

More detailed veterinary records are now being maintained and the causes of death, during
this period, for these animals were available.

From the records the inspectors noted that there were a significant number of deaths (19)
from preventable causes.

The veterinary team had recorded that;

Two animals died from rat poison

Five Inca terns died from exposure undetermined

One Alpaca died from hypothermia

Thirteen animals died from trauma

One bird euthanased after having a beak broken by a Macaw
Three from emaciation

One lemur had drowned

Three Ducks had been run over.

NSO R WM

A significant proportion of these are due to fighting amongst animals. At interview the vet
for the collection RB agreed that there was a large number of injuries from fights but did not
see how he could resolve this. He agreed that that a major cause of deaths was from injuries
and trauma.

Furthermore, whilst there have been seventeen animal deaths from trauma related causes,
during the period between 1 January and 30 April 2016, a further fifteen animals have been
treated for traumatic injuries and wounds. (Other animals have been treated for other
medical problems). ‘

(The actual figure is likely to be higher, as not included in this figure are other animals that
might have received injuries and not received treatment, and other animals that are listed
for having received treatment but not stated as having received treatment for trauma, e.g. a
hand infection).

The inspectors noted that there is now an obvious increase in the number of visits and the
veterinary invelvement in the zoo, and this is to be commended. There is also a significantly
improved recording system of veterinary matters, and it is partially because of that, that the
inspectors now have the written evidence of the welfare issues that they are concerned
about.

The veterinary department (FS and RB), were interviewed regarding this at iength and
accepted that the level of injuries and death were unacceptably high. However they did not
have a plan as to how it could be reduced. FS was of the opinion that injury due to fighting is
what would happen in the wild, and the risk of this should be balanced against their



freedom to range freely. They did inform us that they had planned a meeting in June, with
the consulting vet Andrew Greenwood, to discuss the first four months of data.

The veterinary department, despite attending more regularly, seem to be largely reactive
and ‘firefighting’. Qu RB 7 spend most of my time stitching animals up’ the management in
preventing these problems.

The inspectors do acknowledge that they have implemented a program of vaccinations,
contraception and worming in many areas, which is to be commended.

The inspectors would like to stress that their concern over the high level of trauma and
mortality is not a criticism of the keepers themselves, of whom the inspectors were
impressed with their keenness, and obvious passion about looking after the animals to the
best of their ability. It is also acknowledged that a programme of training and CPD for
keepers is now place that was not evident in November 2015. '

There are likely to be many complex reasons for the high level of trauma and mortality,
however it is the inspectors’ belief that, to a large part, it is fundamentally the way the
animals are kept; i.e. in large groups, in a large space, where it is difficult to manage the
animals and to detect injuries or body condition, with uncontrolled breeding in some
instances, {e.g. ring-tailed lemurs).

During interview, DA commented that he thought the collection was overstocked, and had
too many animals, however DG informed the inspectors that the lemurs were allowed to
breed as they liked. However there is a collection plan which does contain some more
detail.

For example in the collection plan; for ring tailed Lemurs it states: ‘Monitor breeding and
surplus as numbers increase. Possible to stop breeding next year’.

It is a requirement under the Section 1A {vii) of the ZLA that a zoo must;

‘accommodate their animals under conditions which aim to satisfy the biological and
conservation requirements of the species to which they belong, including providing each
animal with an environment well adapted to meet the physical, psychological and social
needs of the species to which it belongs; and providing a high standard of animal husbandry
with a developed program of preventative and curative veterinary care and nutrition

In the inspectors’ opinion the mortality rate is high and sadly, from the information
supplied, the cause of many of these deaths are preventable. Whilst the inspectors accept
that deaths from trauma can, and do, occur, and that other preventable accidents can
oceur, it is the consistently high number, plus the lack of any written or verbally produced
action plan to remedy this, that is of concern.

These are problems that are preventable provided a suitable environment for the animals to
live in has been provided, whilst demonstrating most normal behaviour, but not undergoing
fear and distress.



There is little evidence that the present management team, with DG acting as a hands on
manager, have made any significant attempts to reduce this problem. In fact there is no
evidence that the management team have made any efforts to reduce this problem by
putting together and implementing a plan to improve the current welfare of these animals.
However, DA stated that, were he allowed to, he would implement such changes.

B. Management of the animals

During discussion with the staff, it came to light that a number of birds had recently been
moved from other areas of the park into the Africa field. These birds included hornbills,
storks, cattle egrets, ibis, and crown cranes.

It was difficult to clarify when these had been moved, with a keeper informing us that it had
been a few weeks ago, DA informing us that it had been after the winter. DG informed us
that it had been a couple of years ago, then changing it to tast year, then acknowledging
that it must have been after the [ast inspection.

Whenever they were moved they still had not been provided with any shelter, or perching.
Many of these species will find shelter from inclement weather in shrubs, or under
canopies, and enjoy perching, and building nests in trees. DA and a keeper confirmed that
none of these were available to the birds.

DA informed us that they did have access to a mound which was surrounded in electric
fencing to stop the hoof stock gaining access. On this mound was Qu ‘some long grass and
weeds’. This is insufficient, and would certainly have been inadequate over the winter
periods if the birds had been there as DG reported.

When interviewed the animal manager DA informed the inspectors that the moving of these
animals had been undertaken without his knowledge, and had been undertaken by DG.

No one was able to explain satisfactorily why there was no suitable shelter or perching for
these animals. DG said that he had the wood available, but had not had time to build it. The
inspectors were informed on the second day of their inspection that shelters were now
being built,

Of concern is that these birds have been relocated to an environment, at some point prior
to the inspection, without suitable facilities, i.e. perching and shelter, being constructed
prior to the move. This is an example of the poor management still ongoing in the zoo
under the direction of DG.

It is also reminiscent of the problem that was identified by the inspectors at their inspection
in November 2015 when, amongst other things, the death of five Nyala was noted in the
same enclosure, with some of these being due to exposure.

This is of concern as;
1. The animals are not being provided with suitable shelter and perching as required by
the 5SSMZP
2. The management team are not functioning as a communicating team in the interests
of the animals’ welfare.



C. Public safety concerns

A condition was applied in November 2015 that a full written review of the risks of bites or
injuries to members of the public by animals must be carried out and an action plan
adopted to eliminate the bites and injuries. {By 22" May 2016).

Whilst a written review was carried out, it is inadequate and does not address the
underiying issues.

Bite injuries to the public can be divided into two sections, those inflicted by primates and
those by birds. - .

Primate bite injuries to the public have been recorded historically at higher than expected
levels. These are of concern for a number of reasons. Firstly, by the very nature of the injury
" it is-a traumatic experience, there is the potential for doing serious, possibly lasting, harm,

~ and there is also the potential for the spread of zoonotic disease. :
_Although the zoo has considerable signage in place warning the public about the potential
of bites from primates, and requesting that the public do not feed or touch the animals, the
very way the animals are managed means that conflict between the animals and the public
is a high likelihood. Effectively there are free roaming primates, coming into contact with
members of the public who have food. This food may or may not have been purchased at
the z0o, however the primates are intelligent creatures, and cannot read the signs and
attempt to steal the food. The resultant conflict is likely to lead to members of the public
being bitten.

At interview KB said that ‘bites injuries are inevitable’. RB also saw that hite injuries are
likely to happen and an acceptable risk. He added that this was a risk that the public took
when they visited this zoo.

In the review of bite injuries the zoo states that there had been no bite injuries reported so
far that year. Whilst that may be true, the inspectors find it hard to believe that no bite
injuries have occurred.

In fact on their own website, earlier in May, is a post from a member of the public, stating
‘good day at the zoo, not keen on the little monkey that grabbed my hand and bit my finger’.

Furthermore whilst the inspectors were waiting for the lemur feeding expetience, a Cotton
Topped Tamarin was observed trying to steal food (popcorn bought on site) from a child in
pram. {See Photograph}



Photographs showing Cotton topped Tamarin, which jumped onto the child in the pram,
trying to steal popcorn that was being eaten by the child.

The monkey repeatedly came back to steal the food, and had to be ‘shoced’ away from the
child by DA. The child was obviously distressed by the experience. This occurred in an area
that is close to the restaurant, where the publicis able to buy food.

Later the inspectors noted a ring tail lemur on one of the outdoor eating tables adjacent to
the restaurant. A man was having to ‘shoo’ this monkey away from his son who was trying
to eat something.

The inspectors observed a lemur feeding session. We were impressed with the knowledge
of the keepers, and accept that the keepers did ask people to keep away from the rails, and
gave them suitable advice about feeding only lemurs on the rail, and gave advice about how
to avoid being bitten. The public were also asked to wash their hands after the experience.

Six keepers were observed at this feeding session, including one at the gate. There were
approximately 70-100 people present at the experience. KB informed the inspectors that
there were about three hundred people in the zoo on that day, and that on a busy day,
there could be two to three hundred people at the lemur feeding experience. In essence
there could be two or three times the number of people we witnessed present at a lemur
feeding experience.

However, crowd control with this number of people is difficult, and so although people were
asked to keep a metre back from the rail, they quickly moved forwards again. This brought
them within range of lemurs sitting on the rail. Although people are meant to hold the food
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in their fingers and offer the food for the lemur to take, it is not adequately controlied and
lemurs were observed grasping children's hands and arms, and grabbing food from the
public. Lemurs were also observed jumping onto to keepers’ backs, requiring the keepersto
brush them off with their hands.{ See Photographs) :

Lemur feeding. Photograph shows the crowd, and Photograph 2 shows two lemurs
grabbing a persons’ arm.

Gloves are not given to the public, to protect them from potential zoonotic diseases. Most
z00s do now recommend that the public wear gloves when handling or touching primates.
Whilst SLSZ says that the public must not touch the primates, it is obvious from our brief

observation that there is considerable direct contact between the primates and the public.

During interview the vet RB agreed that gloves should be worn by the public when coming in
contact with primates. It is also noted that the Zoo's own written SOP does state that gloves
should be worn when working with primates. -

Finally on the website, in May, there is a photograph of a young woman in a temur house
feeding a lemur. She is wearing no PPE and no gloves.

The 700 has a duty of care to the public to ensure that they are not bitten, and that it
manages the risk of potential spread of zoonotic diseases, both the ZLA and under Public
safety legislation.
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The present zoo management does not acknowledge this, and accepts that there is a
likelihood of people being bitten.

The potential for the spread of zoonatic disease from a primate to a visitor has not been
acknowledged, and no process is in place to prevent it. The potential for this risk was fully
acknowledged by the vet RB, and then acceded by KB.

D. Perimeter fence
A condition was applied in November 2016 that;

in accordance with 8.7 and 8.29 of the SSSMZP all vegetation, shrubs, bushes and trees in
proximity to the perimeter fence must be cut back and maintained to ensure they remain
clear of the electric fencing. All shrubs, bushes and trees overhanging or near the perimeter
fence must be cut back to prevent animals from escaping. This had to be completed by 22"
May 2016

During the February licensing committee hearing the zoo informed the LA that a start had
been made, and gave assurances that it would be completed. During interview at the May
inspection DA acknowledged that this had not been completed. He informed the inspectors
that an area of the perimeter fence needed replacing.

Some areas of the perimeter fence were viewed. Whilst it is apparent efforts have been
made to carry out the required work, where this has been carried out, it is already growing
back {See photographs}. In other areas there is no evidence of work having been
undertaken, e.g. it the small area where the perimeter fence cuts back in towards the food
preparation area. The perimeter fence that needs replacing has not been replaced.
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Perimeter fence 1, showing areas that still are to be cut back properly

Perimeter fence 2 Perimeter fence 3
Both showing how where the overgrowth has been cut back, it is already returning.

On interview DA reported that he was doing his best, but was short on man power. We
gained the impression that he was doing much of this work himself. However DG informed
us that he had put his full maintenance team onto the problem to resolve it. He was also of
the opinion that it had been resolved.

summary of findings of the Special Inspection of South Lakes Safari Zoo {SLSZ) 23 ¢ 25t
May 2016

s Since the Renewal Inspection of November 2015 it is apparent that members of staff
have been working hard to bring the Zoo up to standard, within limits set by DG.
Record keeping, particularly in the veterinary department, is greatly improved.

e There also now appears to be an improved programme of keeper CPD.

e Since January 2016 a new, experienced Animal Manager, DA, has been in place.

e Since November 2015 DG has taken a much more hands-on approach to the day to
day running of the animal collection. In DA’s words DG is “micro-managing” the
animal collection. In the presence of DG and other members of the management
team DA made clear that he is ready and able to take over managing the collection

but has been prevented from doing so by DG.

12



e At the meeting at Barrow BC on 25" May 2016 with the three inspectors DG said, in
front of his management team, that he would now immediately step back. He also
stated that he would sign a document confirming this and would speak to his lawyers
to arrange it.

s In the opinion of the inspection team failure to a comply with Conditions, such as
that relating to the perimeter fence, and failure to address issues of animal welfare
and public safety as outlined in this report, are directly attributable to DG retaining
day to day control and not allowing his animal management team to develop
modern, progressive protocols. This was certainly confirmed by DA in the meeting
with DG and the management team on 25 May 2016, Furthermore, DA made very
clear that once enabled he would make changes. In other words, failings to meet
modern zoo standards and the conservation requirements as specified in Section 1A
of the amended {2002 regulations) ZLA are directly attributable to failure to
implement Condition 39.

s There appear to have been ongoing attempts to formulate and implement the new
overall zoo management structure as required by Condition 39. This had not been
achieved by the time of the 22" May deadline and nothing said at the May
inspection gave any confidence that change is imminent. Indeed, DG’s own best
estimate of completion is November 2016. The inspection team cannot and will not
comment on the viability of the proposed changes to the Zoo’s ownership and
management structure currently under consideration.

e The inspection team is very keen to emphasise that it does not wish to see the
closure of South Lakes Safari Zoo. But without evidence of very rapid changes in
animal management practices (to resolve issues as outlined in this report), and due
to the failure to comply with Condition 39 by the due date, the inspection team
cannot give a recommendation for renewal of the licence to the current licence
holder,

s Itisthe inspection team’s hope that from the date of the May 2016 Special
Inspection DG will, as he informed us, have immediately stepped back from his day
to day hands-on involvement with animal management at the Zoo.

e Itis hoped that he will allow his current management team to get on with the
urgent job of addressing those issues where, albeit late, compliance might positively
influence the decision of Barrow BC Licensing Committee when it meetson 5, 6,7
July 2016.

e In the circumstances of a signed declaration from DG that he has removed himself
from the day to day running of the Zoo, and immediate verifiable evidence that the
management team are effectively addressing all the issues highlighted in this report
the inspection team recommend that Barrow BC gives consideration to a renewal of
the licence to the current licence holder.
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In the above circumstances, which would avoid the immediate very serjous
consequences of closure of the Zoo but would not have ensured compliance with
Condition 39, the inspection team’s recommendation to Barrow BC is that the

licence could be renewed, but must have a number of Additional

Conditions/Direction Orders with timelines to ensure compliance with the
mandatory conservation measures in Section 1A of the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (as
amended) with specific reference to animal welfare in 1A(c).

To avoid any possibility of the current situation continuing for a further six years,
and any possibility of DG not holding to his agreement not to interfere in the running
of the Zoo in future, the inspection team recommend that a Direction Order
enforcing compliance with Condition 35 should be applied to any renewed licence
and that failure to comply fully within six months would result in a Closure Order:
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APPENDIX No. D

Response of Safari Zoo Management
to the Zoo Licencing Report of May 2016.

- Condition 39 has not been complied with, and as it stands, unfess circumstances change,
the LA should not renew the license, as recommended in the report in November 2015.
The report fails to recognise and acknowledge the intense work that has been ongoing to
recruit and employ senior animal Management for the Zoo to comply with this condition since
December 2015. The Zoo gave the inspection team clear detail of proposed new staff and it
seemed to be well received and the quality in principal agreed as suitable. We also informed
the inspectors categorically that we CANNOT comply unless the Licence is renewed in July
simply because no sensible person who holds a senior position in any zoo would give up
that position to find their employment terminated by a refused, deferred decision or re
application of the Licence. The two new Senior Manager appointment terms are agreed and
all that is now required to have these people in place to fully comply with Condition 39 is the
renewal of the Licence. If seems we are in “catch 22" We cannot recruit because of the
threat to take away the Licence and you will not give a licence until the staff are in place?
We require fairness and common sense to prevail in this matter to allow the Zoo to employ
these experienced managers by the renewal of the Licence or we shall be faced with a
situation where the Condition placed and threat made of refusal by the Authority in
November actually prevented us complying with it, thus being unjust and unfair.

e The CEO (Karen Brewer) has a legally binding contract of employment that gives her
full control over the company operations independent of shareholders but subject to
the Board of Directors guidance.

e This is compliant with the condition as written.

» To conclude this matter, we confirm the agreement of terms with two senior
animal management prospective employees subject to Licence renewal and
the CEO who is in position at this time.

e The prospective Director of Animal Management is as previously revealed to
inspectors , Andreas has confirmed that he is to begin contracted training and
management input in July for 4 weeks. Then he is preparing a regular training
and management input in his words:

“What | can offer at this time, and this is what | told David, is that I, on a consuftancy
basis, could be at Safari Zoo for several consecutive weeks at certain dates in 2016 fo
assess current animal management, animal welfare, and work procedures, to eventually
come up with a structured operation manual including clear responsibilities, as well as
staff training schedule and training. During these times | would also be in a position to
either identify a person already working for you or to find someone who may slip or grow
into an animal manager position under my supervision. A strategy that I'd be happy to
present to and discuss in detail with council as well as work along with you and them to
bring things back on frack”

He cannot make any full time commitment until the Zoo Licence is fully renewed for 6
years, _

The proposed Curator can start early September if the Licence is renewed early July
but will not resign until a Licence for 6 years is issued,

We therefor make the request that the Licence be renewed in July and if necessary a
Condition applied as suggested by the Inspectors in their report that a Senior Animal
Manager must be in place by the end of the year as after notice is given to previous
employers and commitments honoured it is stated that they would be able to take up position
within that time frame.




We have made other positive developments to strengthen the team and provide that robust
structure. Kim Banks who is head keeper and been a senior keeper at Safari Zoo for 7 years
has agreed to take the role of assistant to the animal manager along with Mark Conway anks
who is senior keeper and been with the zoo for & years who has also agreed to the same
position. This gives us clear levels and responsibilities moving forward. Until our new Curator
starts we shall continue with DG as the external advisor, Kim and Mark will manage the day
to day keeper operations as they have for the past 2 months under guidance. As soon as the
Curator starts they will take the assistants role and back up the Curator in all aspects of zoo-
animal management. We have promoted 3 other staff to more prominent positions of
responsibility to replace Mark and Kim as Head Keepers.

We shall rely upon Andreas to train, develop and grow all the new staff and promoted staff
from his contracted role. DG wishes to be relieved of his role as advisor as soon as is
. practicable and legal i_iabili_ty issues are covered and sighed for by others.

_has not been able to take any lead role after his probation period due to a failure to
immerse himself in the needs of a modern zoos H and S requirements and procedures. He
has failed to communicate with staff or management and his position is under review.
Despite the Inspectors demands for the Zoo to give him full control it would have been
irresponsible, illegal and dangerous for DG or the CEO to have given that control without a
defined comprehension of legal requirements and standards. This illustrates further the issue
of making major decisions about character and ability based on a few words and a few
minutes of interviews. DA may have said what you wanted to hear but he could not match
that with any level of acknowledgement of responsibility to staff and public. He remains
employed with the zoo.

The new CEO, Directors and staff as a whole are very positive about the new structure along
with continued security of the company and they are all looking forward to having a confident
and productive future in the zoo. Further to this comment we can confirm the position of the
trading company operating the zoo business.

Whilst the Authority has had numerous possibilities placed in its domain in recent months
this exercise has proven to be a long carefully researched and legally advised gathering of
the information from Accountants, the Bank and legal counsel. We have had numerous
meetings consultations with all affected parties from HMRC, the Bank, employees, overseas
dependants and specialists in the industry. -

Without going into detail of all the possible structures the only structure that can possibly
provide the security and unchanged inherent business success to continue solvent
operations into the future with full Bank consent as first charge holders on the property is to
operate the Zoo as follows:

South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited will continue as the legal trading entity of Safari Zoo. This is
to comply with the Banks arrangements and covenants agreed for very substantial bank
loans made based on the structure and success of the company under its management. It
also is to guarantee continuity and preserve confidence in the employees and our suppliers
and customers. it has been agreed by the Auditing Accountants, Bank legal advisors our
Legal advisors and the management that this is the only secure and responsible way forward
for the zoo.

In further regard to Condition 39 it is confirmed that the operating company has appointed
new Directors and a new CEO to take over the total management of the company. David Gill
and his wife Frieda Rivera Schreiber resigned to allow the new Directors full and complete
control over the management of the company. The 4 new Directors of the Zoo operating
Company are Karen Brewer (CEO), Jayne Birkett (Accountant) Stewart Lambert (Chairman
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of the Board of Directors) and Claire Lambert (Retail Manager) The two new Senior Animal
Management employees will be appointed Directors on completion of the probation periods.

This new company situation is typical of most UK companies and is the most common
structure for a company whether private or public. Full legal advice on the companies frading
position has been sought and we have taken our position on the matter from legal counsel in
relation to the Zoo Licencing Act and the requirements of that Act.

This company fulfils ail the requirements under the law to operate a Zoo in that is has a
proven track record, consistently positive accounts and constant investment. It employs the
expertise to effectively manage and operate under the ZLA.

The Directors have made an application to have the Zoo Licence transferred into the
company corporate name with Karen Brewer named as the responsible person to the
Local authority in regard to the Zoo Licencing Act.

It is confirmed that the proposed fransfer of Zoo operations to a Not for Profit Company is
now on hold until financial security is assured by the issue of a new licence to operate. The
proposed transfer is still going to happen but only when the bank and advisors give the
financial position the green light to change. This is unlikely in the next two years due to
unforeseen financial burdens.

The inspectors were very disappointed that many conditions had not been complied with,
and with the number of problems detected during the inspection, resulting in the zoo faifing
to comply with many of the SSSMZP. See ancillary repott for further details.

We respectfully submit that the zoo was placed in an impossible situation by the deadlines
placed on conditions in the February Meeting of the Licencing committee.

Criticisms placed as above do not take in account or acknowledge the vast amount of works
done in the zoo between December and May where our team of 9 full time construction and
maintenance staff worked every day and over time to try to achieve the requirements of the
L.ocal Authority not only the Conditions placed on the Licence but also further unexpected
potential safety issues regarding the need to demolish walkways or modify them once the
standard of construction was changed from the original design loadings placing Public safety
as our utmost priority that took up all the staff time for 14 weeks . Not only did this engage all
our staff fully it created an extra financial burden and cost to the zoo of over £60,400 in
unexpected costs. Thus preventing other issues being address due to physical time
constrainis and zero cash availability at a time of negative cash flow in the zoo. As the Zoo
has no ability to borrow money from any source prioritisation of safety work had to be done
at the expense of other equally important works as we unexpectedly had no funds to
contract outside labour to assist.

+ ltis also of note that ALL the difficulties that have arisen with timescales for
completion stemmed from our fencing and fabrication contractor being taken away
from the zoos vital work for the whole summer in 2015 when he took on major
contracts for Barrow Borough Council at much higher hourly rates than our contract.
This placed all our projects behind by 6 months. Contractors from Preston, Chorley
and a number of other places were contacted who had similar skills to complete our
works and they all refused to work in the locality due to 3 hour drive times to and
from work. There is a serious shortage of suitable contractors for fabrication and
fencing in this region.

CONDITION 30: BABOON HOUSING

In accordance with Condition 34 a notification sheet for any collection change process has
been introduced and across the board consultation taken place with all departments




{maintenance, keepers) as well as Vets the result is a completed facility which has been
widely consulted in house. This process going forward will hopefully also avoid situations
where individuals who were not involved in earlier decisions can be included such as the bird
shelter on Africa due for build before autumn and provide the information to all staff.

+ The timescale given to management for altering the Baboon indoor facility was
' dramatically reduced by the Committee despite the Zoo Inspectors advising the
Committee to allow far more time to complete. The welfare issues were certainly not
compromised as the Baboons had access to the largest Zoo Baboon outdoor area in
the UK. Their activity, enrichment and lifestyle is one of the best in any zoo and in the
spring and summer months the time spent indoors is minimal for sleeping and they
are never locked in (save for maintenance for short periods). All documented
evidence shows that our baboon troop does not suffer for any negative welfare
_ issues, nor stress or other detrimental behavioural problems indeed the opposite. Itis

.. a'very well balanced settled group with excellent health record and no aggression . -
issues whatsoever.. The management of the group has been at the highest level and:
the neéd for éxtra housing was not an issue on two grounds, the numbers of '
baboons in the group was reduced and we were entering and in summer. However,
one specific issue prevented the new construction and this information was available
to the committee when they placed this very difficult condition to comply with despite
the limitation being given. The plan was to use one of the old rhino house enclosures
for the extra baboon internal den. It was clearly stated that the rhinos could not move
until mid-May as we had no control over the animal transported availability to move
the Rhinos. This in effect left the Zoo with 8 days to complete the Baboon facility and
due to our construction teams being forced to address other issues in that specific 8
days that were suddenly brought upon us by the Counci! officers in May changing the
“goalposts” for acceptance of the Engineers report criteria for wooden platforms
being passed as safe they were forced to address public safety as a priority over the
Baboon housing and this was agreed by management as the correct prioritisation of
work load. :

We can confirm that the Baboon facility has now been completed. The design and
operations have had the involvement of the Vets, the staff and management.

It is regrettable that the facility was not completed in the timescale provided for
however due to the pressures placed on the staff of the zoo by the local authority we
did it in the fastest possible time respecting the need to prioritise public safety over
animal housing taking into consideration all the parameters noted and in particular
the summer weather that did not compromise animal welfare at all.

This Condition is fulfilled and completed
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PHOTO: Baboon internal housing extension.
CONDITION 17 REVIEW OF VETERINARY PROGRAMME. (D/O)

« A full review of the programme was undertaken and presented to inspectors during
inspection. Part of that review was to instigate a monthly review of vet “cases’ the
results of which would form the basis of a biannual review carried out by the Vet
teams (Rick Browne, Andrew Greenwood, Frieda Rivera Schreiber). 4 months were
presented to the inspection, those 4 months of discoveries outlined by our veterinary
coordinator Frieda Rivera Schreiber have formed the basis of the claims in pages
458, of the inspectors report, Analysis as discussed by the inspectors is for
veterinary review and a meeting of the veterinary team to review the veterinary
situation of Safari Zoo for the period 1.1.16-30.4.16 has taken place.

« The conclusion of that review resulted in 5 action points which the team thought
essential to provide proper useful analysis of the zoos situation rather than rely on a
shapshot of information. -

AP 1. It was decided the period under observation was too narrow, just a snapshot, that
further investigation was essential to provide a clearer picture as to what was occurring and
<o a review of the annual inventories over a 5 year period (201 1-2015) must take place. By
30th September for a special Veterinary meeting arranged to discuss the findings.

AP2. Contact Marsupial TAG/ vet advisor to the tag for further information/ help re wallaby
mortality rates. Safari Zoo is the ESB coordinator for all Macropods except Parma and
Bennetts Wallabies as they do not have programmes. ltis therefor unlikely that information
is collated. However, Parma Wallaby mortality rates at Safari Zoo have been very low over
many years until the very wet difficult winter of 2015/6. It is suggested this could be the
precursor of the deaths in this period as the animals’ free range and are not locked within dry
housing. (suggestion of bringing them inside next winter with all the other macropods. The
group was from wild caught stock ex New Zealand islands. it is apparent from the 15 years
of managing the Macropd studbooks that we have now lost 3 species from Europe due to
the necrobacillus infections taking more lives than births and we only have two self
supporting species in Red Kangaroo that is stable and Western Grey Kangaroo that is now




stable. Al other species are in decline due to the same issue of non treatable infection as the
main overriding cause.

AP 3: Squirrel Monkeys contact Colchester zoo or Edinburgh who keep large troops of
squirrel monkeys for their experience of multi male multi female groups.

AP4: Lemurs - promotion of a research project to arrange students to come and study the
groups year round. How they interact and what their ranges are, where the issues occur. AG
|IZVG have employed a new co-ordinator of research therefore they will write brief and
coordinate to find students.

We funded a study on wild Ring Tailed Lemurs in Madagascar in 2002. Find this thesis and
re appraise the conclusions in relation to our groups.

AP5: Ducks. Fencing has been installed separating duck from vehicles. Speed limits
reinforced and training of drivers that anything in the road has right of way




Photos: duck fencing.
Reviews to take place biannually.

Veterinary Compliance

We have consulted widely and had assistance with research into this issue and taken
advice from numerous sources. It would seem from this exercise there is a wide
variation in the way DEFRA Inspectors apply and set standards within the ZLA and
SSSMZP. There is no defined standard or indeed is there legal obligation to comply
to very specific criteria that some inspectors may set as their personal standard. The
SSSMZP gives broad parameters for compliance and this Zoo should not be
subjected to the application of a standard that is not universally applied to the wider
Zoo community under the ZLA in the UK.

We have concerns over the way the Veterinary situation at the zoo was described
and reported in the November Inspection report, our complaints and observations do
not seem to have been considered valid however we shouid point out that numerous
documents and procedural activities were not considered, inspected or
acknowledged by the inspection team at that inspection in November 2015 and then
the zoo was accused of major failings because the team did not see or acknowledge
those issues that were totally available to them at the inspection or beforehand in
submissions. _
Further the zoa questions the scientific factual basis that the inspectors have made
their negative comments and opinions regarding management. We ask that the
inspectors quantify and qualify their comments and opinions sticking to facts and not
personal views and opinions. If a specific person is to be isolated and criticised it is
essential that factual evidence is gained rather than personal comments or hearsay.
In the inspectors’ opinion the mortality rate is high and sadly, from the information
supplied, the cause of many of these deaths are preventable. Whilst the inspectors
accept that deaths from trauma can, and do, occur, and that other preventable
accidents can oceur, it is the consistently high number, plus the lack of any written or
verbally produced action plan fo remedy this, that is of concerm.

We question this opin’ion based on facts.
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The International Species Identification System or SIS is a worldwide data base of each zoo
that subscribes to the programme. It is generally seen as requirement of zoos to be
members. This data base holds the detailed records of a huge number of zoos from around
the world and in this instance from the UK under the ZLA and DEFRA inspection standards.

We have undertaken a limited but ongoing study into mortality rates in other UK zoos that
are fully licenced and seen as “model” or established well managed zoos. We do not intend
to name all the Zoos involved in this publicly available document but have all of the
information available for any further appeals that may be needed.

it is a requirement under the Section 1A (vii) of the ZLA that a zoo must;

‘accommodate their animals under conditions which aim to satisfy the biclogical and
conservation requirements of the species to which they befong, including providing each
animal with an environment well adapted to meet the physical, psychological and social




needs of the species to which it belongs; and providing a high standard of animal husbandry
with a developed program of preventative and curative veterinary care and nutrition

Our Veterinary care programme and recording of such is at least equal to if not better than

many zoos licenced under the Act. We have data from the fargest zoo in the UK that shows
that we compare extremely well and indeed few zoos of comparative size or collection have

better mortality or trauma records.

ltis our intention to prove that the standard and criteria demanded from this Zoo by
inspectors in the last two years is not the standard actually maintained by others. At our
DEFRA Balai Veterinary inspection that concentrated on Veterinary records, practices and
procedures, we were inspected in great detail (far deeper and longer than the Special
Inspection ) and this gave us an excelient report and we passed the strict test with no issues
Whilst the DEFRA Zoo inspectors made verbal commenit that the DEFRA officially
employed Veterinary inspector was “not experienced in zoos or qualified” she did in fact
spend far more time and went into far deeper detail about our practices and recording and
health and welfare record and is directly employed by the government to uphold the strictest
standards for animai health and welfare in Zoos under the European Directive.

The Veterinary review does identify some preventable deaths but once again all zoos looked
at had similar numbers of preventable deaths. This has to be seen as the “learning curve” of
working with exotic species. However some are down to practices that need to be changed
or reviewed in all collections and this must be recognised and actioned.

We have identified issues that need addressing and we believe we have done this viare
training and more responsive action orientated Animal Management . Instances of Rat
poison being identified in a number of deaths has been reduced to zero by training and
specialist courses on the subject.




It seems from the information on other holders of large groups of squirrel monkeys that they
have exactly the same breakdown trauma deaths and injuries. It is impossible to predict
when a breakdown will occur in a group of 5, 10 or 50.

In 2016 a list of causes of death has been raised. There was specifically criticism
made of a Night heron death where it is noted the Vet stated or suggested a possible
attack from a Macaw. This cause is disputed greatly and was not the thoughts of the
staff. It is far more likely that this injury causing death was caused by flying into the
mesh at high speed during high winds. With regards to management causes, it is not
tenable to suggest that a bird flying into mesh in high winds is management related
or indeed if a Macaw indeed did bite the Heron how can this be prevented when this
is such an abnormal occurrence? Macaws and Herons have been mixed for many
years with great success and numerous breeding successes not least once again
this spring when Night Herons have successfully reared outside in the aviary.

The Alpaca was and still is undetermined as the cause of its loss of condition as it
was in the same group as 3 others and all the others had good condition. The PM
simply described the physical condition at death and could not isolate a cause.
Alpacas have extremely thick woolly coats and it was impossible to see this loss of
condition in comparison to the others. it is not possible to simply feel their backs very
easily without excessive stress in capture thus increasing trauma related injury,
illness or death. This cannot be blamed on management as the illness did not reveal
itself until it was dead.

The Inca terns was a one off freak event caused by the severe wet weather in
January /February . We received a large new group of birds from Emmen in Holland .
they were winter hardy and we kept them in for a few weeks before releasing them
into the lllescas Aviary. We suffered serious rain storms and continued wet
conditions that was unprecedented. Sadly 5 Inca Terns succumbed to the wet and
wind outside when they refused to come inside the housing shelters. We have not
lost any since that day and indeed they are breeding. We do not accept that this was
a bad management decision but rather a freak weather situation and unavoidable if
the birds chose to stay outside the shelter.

Re emaciation this refers to Parma Wallabies that all were investigated fully. The
conclusion was that possible toxoplasmosis was the cause. However further
investigation revealed keeper failure to feed concentrated food everyday and check
health status to prevent such issues, the specific keeper involved in the shortcutting
of duty has now left the zoos employment due to continued failure to comply with
duty of care. Reseclved.

With reference to the Ducks being run over, prior to these events we had no record of
this issue in the past. In response to the sudden change in incidents management




“placed a fence between the ponds and the road to prevent this ocourrence again.
Resolved.

We would argue that using the facts recorded in ZIMS our style of management has
advantages over more traditional approaches in welfare and death rates and the
concerns voiced by inspectors are unfounded in fact. We acknowledge that
preventable deaths are exactly that and more work has to be done to-address this
aspect and improve just as all zoos need fo do the same. '

We do not accept the criticism of management that has been submitted without any
factual evidence as to comparative standards being submitted to qualify or prove the
accusations made in the opinions.

The criticisms of the management are serious and make clear comment that the zoo is.
badly managed or “not to modern Zoo practice” and this has been used very widely in
national press and the web domain doing great damage to the whole management .
“and keeping staff credibility without-any scientific evidence to back up the
accusations aimed at DG alone and no evidence whatsoever to support this criticism
in the factual statistical evidence available. It is simply a personal view based on no
- comparative evidence and we would request this accusation be immediately publicly
‘removed from the record on the basis of the factual evidence that compares other -
zoos mortality and trauma records. ' -

We do not intend to bring other zoos names or credibility into this situation if the report is to
be in the public domain. However the full details and examples of other zoos failures to
reach the standard demanded tor Safari Zoo will be available for any litigation or appeal if it
was found necessary in the future to clear this zoos name and reputation. ,

o The comments or criticisms are not balanced in reality or based on knowledge of
historic interactions and behaviours and experience. 2106 so far is by far the best
breeding season ever for birds in the Zoo. with tremendous success with
exceptionally difficult species such as Roseate Spoonbills where 6 are now fully
fledged.

This Condition in our view is now Complied with in full and continuing development
will take place

CONDITION 27: FORMAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

"« Inspectors were impressed by the both the morale and the staff themselves, CPD
budgets were always available and this has been actively promoted and encouraged
as this activity had reduced in the past 2 years. Staff have participated in a number of
external workshops organised by organisations such as EAZA, Cat Survival Trust
that were held in zoos such as Paignton, Marwell Wildlife Park, on a number of
topics: Rhino workshop; Primate Nutrition Workshop; UV Lighting Workshop; Big Cat
keepers Workshap allowing extension of knowledge and exchange of information &
best practices with peers. 2 further keepers have also enrolled on the recognised,
Diploma in The Management of Zoo and Aquarium Animals to start September.

Condition complied with and continued development will take place




B Management
Shelter for Birds on African Field.

» The movement of Crowned Cranes, Hornbills, Catile Egrets and Sacred Ibis to the
African Field was written down in our collection management plan over 3 years ago
in the draft of the African Exhibit planning. This plan was never changed and at all
times staff and management were fully aware of this plan. The strategy was to
construct a management area for birds within a new building to be attached to the
Bear House building. This is shown an all plans throughout.

» The specific day and time of movement was dictated by weather and temperatures. It
was not a spontaneous event as is depicted in inspectors comment. We were
suffering increased pressure from the volume and ferocity of the local seagull
population stealing their food and were very concerned for their welfare and possible
starvation if not remedied.

« The bird staff were given numerous weeks notice of the need to move the birds and
given adequate time to catch the birds and then have them all checked for
identification and health. DA was involved in that process. It was decided by all that
releasing them at the start of the summer was the best and most successful potential
option to give all summer to settle in and learn the facility. Whilst DA was not present
on the day of release he certainly was fully aware of the whole process and
reasoning and the well-established collection plan for the African Region as it was all
documented.

« Itwas not deemed an urgent need to provide a shelter at that specific time as the
shelter was in the schedule and all the wood was bought and on site ready for
construction before autumn. The Sacred Ibis have NEVER used a shelter in all the
15 years or so | have kept them. The cattle egrets have also never continuously used
shelter we have encouraged shelter in winter for them and this was always the
management plan. The storks were moved to that site in May 2014 two years
previously and had been successful and content. Storks are extremely hardy, prefer
open positions and normally would live exposed to all weathers sun, rain and wind.
There is no requirement to provide shelter as they will not use it. The Crowned
Cranes were brought into the housing at night.

A point of note that the managements experience in keeping and habits of these specific
birds as opposed to making a generalisation about shelter is that if you provided shelter for
these specific birds they would not use it until winter as they do not like enclosed areas and
have a specific need to have good views all around for security. We built a shelter on the day
of the inspection and it was completed but to date despite feeding the birds inside that
shelter they refuse to use it in any weather or at night. Management of animals is
understanding the needs and behaviours of the animals in day to day life. Observing their
habits and needs over many years. We submit categorically there was no welfare issue
arising from the decision to move the birds without a shelter present before Autumn /winter
and indeed the welfare of those birds was improved markedly by allowing free natural
feeding in the fields as they would behave exactly in the wild. There were no losses, illness
or other issues due to the movement of the birds onto the African Area and no welfare
issues for these birds. This was not a bad management decision and did not result in any
welfare issue,

Condition/ Issue Complied with
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C Public Safety.
CONDITION 30: REVIEW OF ANIMAL BITES

The initial condition requested an annual review, that review was delivered up to and
including 31.12.15 a further snapshot review was delivered to inspectors prior to the May
visit accounting for the period up to 30.4.16.

One of the action points as a result of that review was to extend the period under
observation so the number of incidents between the years 2010-2014. That review has been
completed and follows below in the hope it would provide a broader in depth realistic
representation of the reported bite incidents. Specific attention has been paid to the free
roaming animals of the world-wide safari.

A summary of findings can be seen below: YEAR

2010 No reported incidents
2011 MNo Reported Incidents
2012 1 * squirrel monkey.
{*rabbit. 1*penguin
2013 No information available.
2014 1*monkey. 1*tamarin.

Management observed the issues as reported by inspectors and actions were put in place,
implemented and delivered.

We acknowledge the Inspectors comments but respond by stating that a full review was
undertaken of feeding risks and that the resuiting actions sadly were not taken seriously
enough by Zoo keepers in their application of managers instructions. It is a concern of the
management that it is difficult to get staff to appreciate the gravity of issues and their role in
prevention of problems occurring, whether this be general safety and cleanliness or critical
issues such as potential bites. We have had meetings, put time into on site training and
replaced sighage. However it is conceded that keeping staff failed to implement the safety
regime the management had in place for the past 20 years when feeding the lemurs at the
inspection. We had not enforced the use of gloves as we had in previous investigations been
informed there were no Zoonoses known to be prevalent in Lemurs and we are informed this
is still the case. So the risk of infection was extremely low in comparison to other species.

Our investigations show historically we have an excellent record of safety and it has become
apparent that new staff have not taken on board the vital importance of animal training and
distance between visitors and lemurs.

Actions taken :

1. Retraining and clear defined criteria for feeding time. Disciplinary action to be taken
for any breach of the protocol.

2. Gloves available to everyone at each feeding time.

3. A very distinct change involving investment in technology has been the introduction
of automated warning messages developed by DG.
Previously we employed staff or volunteers to man each entry gate into the world
wide safari. This depended on the individual as the effectiveness of the messages
given and warnings absorbed by the public.

4. We have installed a repeating safety message that plays constantly from 10am
until 5pm every day at each gate of entry. The cost of this new technology was
£5,000 . This message is clear, categorical and brings a serious warning to each




person who enters the area. It states not to touch, stroke or feed any lemur or
monkey and states that the risk of infections from bites or scratches are real and that
hands must be washed on exit. We feel this will enforce a very much more effective
message that is consistent and covers all necessary risks preventing people from
taking that opportunistic stroke. g :

This new technology then releases more staff to be on guard within the region and
this will assist with direct interaction with the public if necessary. :
With regard to free ranging lemurs we have taken a very pro active approach o be
able to continue with freedom for the animals whilst reducing or removing risk to the
public.

Firstly the very major step of stopping all picnics within the Zoo was introduced
recently by DG.

investment in major signage and extra picnic areas around the playground and surrounds
restricts all food to that area and no picnic food is now allowed to be carried around the Zoo.

We have removed ALL picnic tables and picnic areas from the whole active
Zoo. : -

The outside “Boma” Restaurant eating area has been lemur proofed by the
addition of a new fence right around it that is electrified and access is by gates
only. Cost £5,000 _ :

Free ranging Tamarin s have been moved to an area of the zoo that does not
sell or provide food fo the public.

We feel that all these very significant changes to the way food is allowed and
available within the Zoo will reduce dramatically the potential for negative
interactions with the public to the lowest possible level by taking all
reasonable precautions to reduce the risks.

DG and management have been very constructive in developing a way forward
that preserves the uniqueness of the zoo and the clearly beneficial lifestyle of
its animals.

Condition complied with and major changes made to Zoo policy and procedures fo
reflect this need to address the potential risks.
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Photo: An example of the new signage in place restricting food into the zoo




Photo: fencing surrounding the “Boma” Restaurant eating area. Lemur proofed by the
addition of a new fence right around it that is electrified and access is by gates only.




D. CONDITION 28: PERIMETER FENCE

This very important issue should have been addressed within the prescribed period it is
acknowledged. That this was a very important need under the ZLA. However, our problem
was that our specialist fencing contractor was totally tied up working 60 hour weeks on the
construction and final fitting out of the African house from December until mid-May. There
are no other specialist fencing contractors in this area, no other contractor was available or
willing to travel to the area to work until July this year. The management instructed the
maintenance team and keeping staff to cut back the offending areas of over grown trees and
this was stated as being completed. It is acknowledged that a few small areas were not cut
on the date of the inspection.

The Animal Management team were given clear instruction to report any contamination of
close growth by the perimeter and it was reported to Management that this exercise was
completed. The management team acknowledge that in hindsight they should have
personally checked the information supplied to them verbally by others as to the status of the
clearance of contamination due fo growth of frees.

» The Licencing Committee may please note that we have completed all cutting back
of the tree lines and indeed have gone a step much further by installing and
replacing 400m of fotally new security fencing along a different line to prevent
tree contamination occurring in the longer term. This at a cost of £18,000 extra to
our budget. This was done as soon as our fencing contractor was available and they
started work on 25t May 2016. The management of the Zoo wish to make clear this
condition was not breached intentionally but because our own internal staff were full
time employed complying with walkway enforcement orders placed by the authority
we had no other availability of a fencing contractor to do the work until the date
described due to unavailability of contractors and an inability to pay contractors due
to unforeseen extra expenses forced on the zoo by the council placing directions or
enforcement orders on the zoo.

¢ This condition is now fully complied with.

s It is regrettable that this condition was not complied with in the prescribed timescale
however we have set out our mitigation and the Condition is complied with in full. A
written protocol of regular clearance is in place for the summer months when tree
growth takes place.

Condition complied with in full




Photo: perimeéffence cut back in pr_ogress
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Summary of findings of the Special Inspection of South Lakes Safari Zoo (SLSZ) 23rd fo
25th May 2016 :

Since the Renewal Inspection of November 2015 it is apparent that members of staff
have been working hard to bring the Zoo up to standard, within limits set by DG

{ this comment suggests that DG purposely has limited the response in fact all
management will support DG and state categorically he has been the MOST
proactive and positive responder with ideas and providing the funds as it has
become available to us with the season. The only limit we have had is time}

Record keeping, particularly in the veterinary department, is greatly improved. Very
little is actually different from November 2015 the only change is the addition
to ZIMS of all PM records. We are very proud of this excellent response by
Frieda Rivera Schreiber who has work extremely hard to co ordinate the data
and the Vets in this matter.

There also now appears to be an improved programme of keeper CPD.

Since January 2016 a new, experienced Animal Manager, DA, has been in place
Since November 2015 DG has taken a much more hands-on approach to the day to
day running of the animal collection. In DA’s words DG is “micro-managing” the
animal collection. In the presence of DG and other members of the management
team DA made clear that he is ready and able to take over managing the coffection
but has been prevented from doing so by DG. (It is agreed that DA was prevented
from taking over in full and that was absolutely the correct thing to do for a
responsible Zoo management. Any suggestion that we should introduce a new
staff member and simply place them in contro! when they do not know the
basic layout, operations, animals, staff , health and safety risk assessmentis or
written procedures would be irresponsible and negligent and to suggest
otherwise is not tenable. DG has done a very important and vital job in
recovering the zoo from the issues and dramatic adjectives used by the
inspection team in November. The investigations into the issues was instigated
by the management team as a whole, DG was requested by the team fo take
control. He then took immediate action to find solutions to as many of the
issues as possible within the time constraints made and the financial limits the
zoo was bound by. We were operating on a zero cash flow due to the major
investments being made in the African area and other ongoing developments
and renewals in the Zoo that were equally as vital from a safety and welfare
point of view. DG was not Micro managing he was bringing the whole Zoo back
into line as the Inspection and the management required. Personal criticism of
this huge effort is not constructive nor fair in the short timescale available to
resolve 2 full years of failed management of that department. DA had not
acknowledged full understanding or signing off of Risk Assessments,
Procedure documents, or shown compliance with written documentation. It is
and would be placing a serious liability on the Zoo and its management if DA '
was given full responsibility before this was acknowledged, signed for and
actually in practice. Any pressure from Inspectors or Council to force change
hefore safety issues are full addressed is irresponsible and not acceptable to
the Zoo Management. it is of note that Zoo Inspectors make huge judgements
of character in just minutes of interviews and walk rounds. We have concerns
at the major contradictions the inspectors provide in their comments, it seems
untenable to state the inspectors had confidence in the previous zoo manager
yet provided a report that was damning of the Zoos animal management in
November? We removed that manager due to serious breaches of compliance
and failure to comply to standards applicable. It therefore cannot be suggested




that that manager had any capability to take the zoo forward positively? Yet the
inspectors make that comment? , .

This is clear to our management that would have been disastrous for the zoo and we
have the full time everyday experience to make that judgement. :

« At the meéting at Barrow BC on 25th May 2016 with the three inspectors DG said, in
front of his management team, that he would now immediately step back. He also
stated that he would sign a document confirming this and would speak fo his lawyers
to arrange it.

This was done in a very coercive manner, pressured and giving no alternative
but a refusal to renew the licence.

All the management team felt this was uncalled for and wrong to make DG hand over
responsibility for the Animal Management within seconds of being demanded ina
meeting when DA simply was notina position to do so. By his own admission DA did -
not sign and acknowledge the basic Safety documentation for the zoo, thus the
Inspectors forced change to a person who placed the Zoo at serious risk of breach of
the taw and its public responsibilities. There was no benefit to the Zoo, staff orour
requirement to comply with the laws governing the Zoo to be forced to hand over fuil
responsibility to a person who could not fulfil his duties in a safe effective manner
and how inspectors given the responsibility for standards to be upheld could demand
this action is for review. This was not by anyone restricting DA’s development but by
the volume and complexity of Modern Zoo Practice paperwork and need for
compliance. The management team found that the inspectors had an inability to either
accept or comprehend the massive contribution to the zoos overall compliance by DG
and his wish to hand over this role to a responsible person freely. This cannot be
done lightly, by force or by unwarranted criticism from a few hours of inspections.
The responsibility of an animal manager is huge and this zoo will not be pushed to
compromise public and staff safety by giving responsibility too early or hefore full
proof of capability to comply.

e In the opinion of the inspection team failure fo a comply with Conditions, such as that
relating to the perimeter fence, and failure fo address issues of animal welfare and
public safety as outlined in this report, are directly attributable to DG retaining day fo
day control and not allowing his animal management team to develop modern,
progressive protocols.

The Management of the zoo feel this personal attack on DG’s professional approach
is unwarranted and cannot possibly be born out in fact, this personal accusation
separates the responsibilities of the other managers placing him at fault for
everything. This simply is not the way a company works or how the compliance
issues were dealt with or priorities. DG brought back urgency, appreciation of the
need to comply, action within the financial and time constraints and he had to balance
numerous other enforced needs in the whole zoo placing public safety as the priority.
All the management were in total support and agreement with the strategy
undertaken, its prioritisation and implementation. This is not something inspectors
can lay blame on DG in a few short interviews over a few hours in a year. The whole
Zoo management team delivered the works and we all made the decisions together
and criticism is so easy to hand out by inspectors when you do not have the pressure
of time or finance to comply and deliver so much in such a very short time. it is
obvious the appreciation of physical time restraints, workloads and demands are not
seen by inspectors who do not have the experience of these works or the time it
needs to do them. We would appreciate understanding of the background and stop
the personal attacks on DG when he was the hardest working and loudest voice to get
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the works done. This was certainly confirmed by DA in the meeting with DG and the
management team on 25 May 2016. Furthermore, DA made very clear that once enabled he
would make changes. In other words, failings to mest modern zoo standards and the
conservation requirements as

specified in Section 1A of the amended (2002 regulations) ZLA are directly atiributable to
failure to implement Condition 39.

The Management find this comment to be unreasonable and unfair. the work load
expected was impossible to achieve in such a short period of time. the new Manager
DA had no involvement initially for many months as he asked to slowly return to
management. We held a prioritisation meeting that had to balance finances with
compliance and then public safety. It has been acknowledged that huge strides were
made forward, this was down to DG bringing the animal Management back to life and
demanding huge changes in attitude towards compliance. The loudest voice in regard
to Safety and compliance in the Zoo is and always has been DG. One of the reasons
he is known to be a manager with a mission is that he does not accept low standards.
However, the management team being lied to about compliance by the animal
Department over a long period led to the issues developing as there is no suggestion
of any of these issues arising before 2013/4. It is apparent that the Inspection team do
not personally like DG nor his ideas and concepts, they are placing all responsibility
for other managers failures at his feet and demanding his removal. This is wrong and
shows a very biased view of how the zoo is managed and run overall and the quality
of the staff in all other areas under his management. The opinions and impressions
gained in a just a few seconds of interviews and placing staff in fear of saying the
“wrong thing” is not the most accurate of views. For instance the Inspectors were
impressed with the former animal manager and felt she could take the zoo on to better
things? Yet under official investigation it was revealed that virtually every aspect of
the animal management structure had been let slip, failed to upgrade or even
implement under that person. Huge failings from no rat baiting regime to complete
run down of dietary review or food management, bringing in animals not agreed or at
the best time for their welfare. the list in fact was long and required immediate action
as a responsible zoo management to rectify. Yet the Inspectors still insist that that
person was doing a good job. And the inspection report of November then is a
contradiction as she was in FULL control of Animal Management for more than the
year previously. DG spent hours putting back together the dietary regime, the
research into new dietary recommendations and replaced and updated 67 new diets
sheets. These were then reviewed my AG and RB before implementation. This took a
number of months to complete. DG took over new staff training and introduction to
work. The difference to staff morale is dramatic, he has brought back enthusiasm,
interest and professionalism to the staff and this has been acknowledged by the
inspectors, but DG has not had any credit for his work in achieving this and bringing
it back from the despondent approach before November 2015, The quality of training
has changed from zero fo a situation before November 2015 where now keepers
actively seek out DG for his wealth of experience and knowledge of the species and
individual animals we have in the zoo. Once DA has proven to the Management that
he fully comprehends, abides by and supports the written Risk Assessments,
Working Procedures and regulations that apply to the Zoo and its staff he will have
the backing under the umbrella of the CEO to carry out the Collection plan as it
stands or as the new Directors feel fit. The management feel that the personal attacks
on DG by the inspectors are unjustified, whoily wrong, aimed to cause damage to
personal and company credibility and the whole team takes equal responsibility for
the decisions made in management meetings and in the Zoo. DG’s contribution
should be praised for the hard work dedication and enthusiasm to comply and within
time frames but we are all left balancing needs and having to make decisions that in
our view are priority and public/staff safety is the priority. For instance, it was DG’s
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idea for automated warning systems, fences round the ducks and the public feeding
areas also to remove picnics from the whole zoo. DG’s contribution to the zoos
forward compliance is constant but all this has to balance against seasonal cash
availability to pay for any work required. -

« There appear to have been ongoing attempts to formulate and implement the

new overall zoo management structure as required by Condition 39. This had .
" not been achieved by the time of the 22nd May deadline and nothing said at

the May inspection gave any confidence that change is imminent. Indeed,
DG’s own best estimate of completion is November 2016. The inspection
team cannot and will not comment on the viability of the proposed changes fo
the Zoo’s ownership and management structure currently under
consideration.

The management have made this situation clear. Whilst we have uncertainty about the
licence renewal it is impossible to recruit. There is only one way can possibly comply
and that is with a full renewal to give confidence to prospective new managers. No
other alternative solution such as extensions or requesting a new application waould
be seen as permanent enough for any prospective manager to give up existing
careers. We have sought legal opinion on this situation from Counsel and hold the
view that any other option other than renewal would constructively close the zoo by
virtue of being unable to comply with Condition 39.

« The inspection team is very keen to emphasise that it does not wish fo see the
closure of South Lakes Safari Zoo. But without evidence of very rapid changes in
animal management practices (to resolve issues as outlined in this report), and due
to the failure to comply with Condition 39 by the due date, the inspection team cannot
give a recommendation for renewal of the licence to the current licence holder.

The Management and Directors going forward submit that ALL the issues hrought up
in the report have been complied with or actions taken to find resolution in a long
term project, New ideas implemented and new preventative procedures introduced at
the instructions-of DG and the rest of the team conditions are complied with except 39
that cannot be complied with until the issue of a full licence for 6 years.

e |t is the inspection team’s hope that from the date of the May 2016 Special Inspection
DG will, as he informed us, have immediately stepped back from his day fo day
hands-on involvement with animal management at the Zoo.

As noted this statement was made under severe duress if not threat in the eyes of the
Management team, This was impossible to comply with until DA had shown
understanding, acceptance and compliance with Health and Safety Legislation, Zoo
Licensing Legislation and signed for these issues. It would have resulted in further
litigation or severe criticism of DG and the Zoo if DA was given total control of the
Animal Department before he had complied with this absolutely vital aspect of
operation need. Any forced change without this in place was illegal and untenable.
The suggestion DG has not managed to the SSSMZP is not accepted and this request
is not accepted by the zoo. DG has as always was his wish now stepped back of his
own choice and was planned. The CEO/Director now takes full responsibility for
compliance.

o Itis hoped that he will allow his current management team to get on with the urgent
job of addressing those issues where, albeit late, compliance might positively
influence the decision of Barrow BC Licensing Committee when it mesets on 5, 6, 7
July 20186.
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The management team can report that with the full support and personal assistance
of DG the team have positively and proactively addressed all these issues .

s In the circumstances of a signed declaration from DG that he has removed himself
from the day to day running of the Zoo, and immediate verifiable evidence that the
management team are effectively addressing alf the issues highlighted in this report
the inspection team recommend that Barrow BC gives consideration to a renewal of
the licence to the current licence holder.

On 16w June 2016 DG resigned as a Director of the company and is no longer an
employee of the SLSZ Ltd as agreed with the management team now that we have
completed the compliance issues and resolved the company structure forward as
requested by our Management team in December 2015. DG has handed back the
running of the Animal Department to the CEO and her management team and it is now
the CEO’s responsibility to comply and provide the support and ability for the Zoo to
operate under the ZLA. It is now the fully delegated responsibility of the CEO to
ensure all managers and staff are fully versed and agree with all Risk assessments,
working procedures and compliance with legislation.

The management and staff of the Zoo place on record their disagreement and non
acceptance of the way DG has been treated, described and his credibility undermined
by these words and “conditions” placed. (letter provided)

» In the above circumstances, which would avoid the immediate very serious
consequences of closure of the Zoo but would not have ensured compliance with
Condition 39, the inspection team’s recommendation to Barrow BC is that the licence
could be renewed, but must have a number of Additional Conditions/Direction Orders
with timelines fo ensure compliance with the mandatory conservation measures in
Section 1A of the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (as amended} with specific reference to
animal welfare in 1A(c).

« To avoid any possibility of the current situation continuing for a further six years, and
any possibility of DG not holding to his agreement not to interfere in the running of
the Zoo in futurs, the inspection team recommend that a Direction Order enforcing
compliance with Condition 39 should be applied to any renewed licence and that
failure to comply fully within six months would result in a Closure Order. The
Management and Directors are in full agreement with this Condition 39 as
worded /n order to comply with section 10 of the Secretary of State’s Standards, a
robust management and staffing structure must be in place to the satisfaction of the
licensing authority, in order to allow a new licence to be issued. This new structure
must include a competent, suitably qualified and experienced full-time Director (or
Senior Manager) with day to day responsibility for the running of the Zoo, the ability
and authority to make decisions independent of the owner (Mr David Stanley Gili),
and must be fully responsible to the licensing authority for the conduct of the Zoo, alf
its on-site activities and its compliance with the Secretary of State's Standards.




CEO personal position update A

Since both the March council meeting and the recent May inspection the management team
inclusive of David Gill have made great strides in a number of areas. What perhaps is hard
to perceive for the Inspectors and for myself and the management to portray is the
synergistic relationship between Safari Zoo and David Gill. Over 350,000 visitors every year
~ visit and they visit for the varied collection of animals the unique way in which they can
encounter them and the unique experience they can get at this zoo they cannot get at any
other. That uniqueness is what makes a family drive 3 and a half hours from the North East
or 2 hours from Blackpool when they could so easily choose another zoo probably nearer,
and definitely much easier to get to. That uniqueness or USP is what sets us apart from
Blackpool, Chester or Edinburgh and that uniqueness is borne from David and this is
something the current team wants to continue to embrace and are very worried about any
suggestion of losing that energy, ideas and business expertise. David has worked solidly on
the Conditions his experience, encouragement and personal involverent with individuals
“has lifted moral to a high leve! despite the threats made to our future. | for one witness his
frustration at staff and their appreciation of legistation and the need to comply and this | now
have to deal with. | am confident in my own position to manage the zoo without David here
on a regular basis but we do need his ideas and his contribution in this zoo as it is vital to
keep its heart alive. It is also vital to keep his enthusiasm for conservation and the teamwork
between Safari Zoo and the projects he personally set up and manages.

CONDITIONS & REPORT

| acknowledge Safari Zoo has had issues over keeping within time constraints imposed
by the Council for conditions, we have as a team had to find positive strategy and
compromise to provide a safe zoo for staff and public whilst putting every effort into
complying with deadlines; | do hope the inspectors and the Licencing Commitiee
appreciate fully our obligations to public safety and acknowledge the need to priorities
this aspect over all other issues. | and the management team were not prepared to
compromise public safety in order to attempt to fuliil a deadline that had a lower priority.
The team are committed to continuing to develop this zoo by flying the flag and set high
standards for welfare, conservation, animal husbandry within the modern zoo world.

We have in place a management team that includes Jayne, Claire, Paula, Adam, Jen,
Emma determined and dedicated, backed up with fantastic staff, many of which Kim,
Mark, and Christina are long standing; they all take more responsibility year after year
and they now take more involvement than in previous years. David is just one member
of that team that delivers. Everything that has been achieved to this day has been
achieved by this team with David in situ.

Despite recent comments made to the press by Councillor Barry Doughty, to the

contrary Safari Zoos makes a huge contribution to the local community. With 114 current
employees residing, spending and involved in their communities within the Borough with .
many households, listed below, containing more than one member of staff heavily reliant
on the zoo for income. In the past 10 years alone this Zoo has placed over £20 million
directly into the hands of local people to spend in the local economy.
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There are the local suppliers and contractors we use:

A Barnes Electricat Lid

J A &R Geldard & Sons

AK Fancing

J 8 Cole Lid

Al tax

Jacksons Timber Lid

A590 Mobile Tyres

James Airey

Abacus Communications
Janeanne Lid

Acacia

Lakeland Aggregates Ltd
Advanced Roofing & Plastics Centre
Lakeland Dry Cleaners

. Aerialek Dalton Ltd

Lakeland Elechic Services Lid
Aggregate Industries
Lakeland Land Rover

Aldi

Lakefand Refrigeration Services
Andersons {Barrow in Furness) Lid
Lakes Hospitality Association
Angling & Hiking Centre
Lakes Speciality Foods Lid
Aquatek Northern Lid
Lisdoonie Hotel

Argos

Littie Beasties

Asda

Livingstones Solicitors
Ashton Pianning

Liayds Pharmacy

ATS

Lurnier Ltd

Autoparis {Cumbria) Ltd
Luscombe Plant Hire

B & D Motors Ltd

Marsh Plant Hire & Contracting Ltd
B&M

Mason, S and Sons Ltd

B&G

Mike Botham

B.D.S. Fuels

Mike Skyrme

Barrow Cars

Mixrite Mini Mix Concrete Lid
Barrow Training Parinership
MLTG Building & Roofing
Bay Trust Radio

MTP Media {2008) Ltd
Beddall A& P

Musgraves Homeware
Bleasdale Wand Limited
NSH Training

Booker Limited

Office Machine Services
Booths

Oliver Guest

Brammer Barrow

Criginal Factory Shop, The
Bridgegate Motors

P & W Confidential
Brocklebank & Sons

P.V. Bobson

Brown Cow

Parkins, R.G. & Partners Ltd
Browne & McKinney Vets

FC World

Browns

PCC for Cumbria, The
Builders Supply Company
Pets at Home '
Caraway Silver Works
Cartridge World

Phillip W Rhodes Ltd
Catering Patnership (Kendal) Lid
Plastic Man Lid

Church Walk Veterinary Centre Ltd
Past Office

City Lynx Taxis

Poundiand

Clarence House
Poundstreicher Ltd

Comet

Pr Bocks Lid

Concrete Services Ltd (Minimix}
Premier inn

County Fire Risk Assessment Services
Pressuretech Transport
Cumbria Deslgn Scaffold Ltd
PTS

Cumbria Design Scaffold Lid
Pye Motors

Cumbria Embroidery & Print
Raines Refrigeration Services
Cumbria Fam Foods

Range

Cumbria Tourism

Searle Audio

Clirrys

Shaun Beach Lid

Cypher Digital

Simon Kidson

D & P Johnson Ltd

Slade, A

D G Copier Services

SOA Safety

Daddy's Catering
Southlakeland Parks

Dalton and Ireleth with Askamn Festival As
Sovereign Chemicals Lid
Daiton Motor Paris

Stables Thompson & Brlscos
datton Post Office shop
Stagecoach

Daiton Tool Hire & Sales Lid




Stagger Inn

David Green Graphics
Stewart Lambert
Dellawaite Ltd

Stollers Furniture World
DM Gould

Stone Workshep, The
Dodds

Sun Signs

Doling & Son

Swan Alarms Systems Lid
Duckett, J E Surfacing Lid
T.K Rebinson & Sons Ltd
Dudden Fire North West Lid
Tech Lab

Duddon Hire {Lakeland) L.td
Terry Chemicals Ltd
Dunelm Mill

Tesco

EK Motor Factoers Lid
Thomas Hird

EHis Quads 1.id

Timpson

English L.akes lce Cream
Topps Tiles

English Lakes Soap Company
Travellers Choice

Euro Garages

Travelodge

Evalast

Travis Perkins Trading Co Ltd
Express Pumbing Ltd

g
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Ulverston Tyres Lid
Fallon & Davies Ltd

W F Wilkin & Son

FCC Recycling (UK Ltd
W McClure Lid

First Aid 4 All

Ward Glass

FMB

WCF Pet & Equestian
Hall's {Kendal) Lid

West Coast Catering and Laundry Services

Halfords

Wesimorland Fire & Security
Handyman Jack

WF Senate

Hayton, C.T. Lid

WH Smith

Heacol Lid

Wicks H (Lindal) Ltd

Helen Gamnett

Wilkinson

Henry Armer & Son
Wililarson Brothers (Northwest) Lid
Hertz Rent a Car

Winfields

Holden's Ltd, A

Wynsors

Holts Roofing Services

Yarl Hydracentre Ltd

Home Bargains

Hsp Milners




Then there are the local schools who help make up the 13,000 schoo! children who have
enjoyed free educational trips to the zoo over the last years '

Askam School

Ormsgill Primary School®
Barrow Island Primary School
Quarry Brow Day Nursery
Brisbana Park Infants School
Ramsden Infants

Cambridge Primary School
Roose Nursery

Chapel Street School

Roose Primary School
Chetwynde Primary School
Sacred Heart Schoot
Chetwynde Summer School
South Walney Infant & Nursery
Dowdales

St. Columbus School

Furness Academy

St. Georges C of E Primary School/Nursery

Then there are the local charities the zoo has supported with donations over the last 3 years

Royal Air Cadets

Keswick To Barrow

Cancer Research Uk

Cast Theatre Company

Bamow Dowr's Syndrome

Barrow Ladies Amateur Rugby League Team
Ormsgill Nursey & Primary School
Save The Children

Cumbria Flood

Mental Heaith Foundation

Retired Greyhound Trusi
Cardiomyopathy Charity

Sacred Heart Primary School

St Pius X Cathclic Primary Schooi x 2
RSPCA

Hounds For Heroes

Croft Care Trust

Macmillan Cancer Support
Crohn's and Colitis UK

MACS Charity

Vatlety Children's Charily

Breast cancer Care

Alzheimer's Sociely

North West Alr Ambulance

Lindal & Marton Primary Schoal
Duddon Inshore Rescue Services
Mind

St James Catholic Primary School
Hindpool Nursery

St Marys RC Church

The Jake Ellis Trust

Springer Spaniel Rescue

o,
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George Hastwell School

St. Georges School

George Romney Junior School
St. James Primary School
Greengate infants

St. Marys C of E Primary School
Happy Tots Nursery

St. Pauls Primary School
Hindpoot Nursery School

Si. Pius Schoot

Holy Family Catholic Primary School
Vickerstown Primary

Ireleth St Peters

Victoria Infants & Nursery School
Newbarmns Primary

Yarlside Primary Schoof

Newton Primary School

North Walney Primary

World Challenges

Cardiology Unit

Breast Cancer Research
Firefighters Charity

Sands UK

Cash for Kids

Gancer Support, Locking Good Feeling Great
Bluebeli Foundation

Instep School Of Dance

No Limits Racing (NLR)
Pancreafic Cancer Awareness
Vickerstown FC

The Brickworks

Rotary Chib

Barrow Day Care

Queen Elizabeth Birmingham Hespital
The Christie’s Charity

Asthma UK

St Mary's Hospice

RNLI

Children's Cancer and Leukaemia Group
Our Lady's of the Rosary

Askam Village School x 2
Through Angel's Eyes

Haweoal Park Sports Club
S.C.B.U Furness General

George Romney School

Barrow Girl Guides

Parkside GGl Academy

Help for Heroes

Alice’s Escapes

Funds towards rhabdomysarcoema




For over two whole years Barrow Borough Council made serious accusations against DG in
all aspects of his involvement in the zoo, be it design, risk assessment, compliance, working
practices etc. 7 charges were brought against him and yet not one charge could be upheld
or proven in a Court of Law and DG was declared by the Judge innocent and Not Guilty of
any of the accusations made against him. The company also had similar attempts to
undermine it with a huge number of allegations and charges laid. In the end only two minor
issues remained out of so many that were dropped and unable to be proven. We also must
not allow the media cover up the reality of the final situation, the Company pleaded guilty to
failing to provide a risk assessment for the tiger House door D2 that adequately covered the
maintenance of that door. In fact it was that we did not have a proactive maintenance regime
of a person greasing/checking every month or so and signing for it, but we relied upon
keepers to grease and maintain themselves. This historic practice was in full and open
agreement with DEFRA Inspectors and Barrow Council Inspectors, but we accepted this
suggested change a very long time ago, not at the court and put that proactive regime in
place. Our expensive failure was that in all our procedures and working practice documents
we only mentioned locks and slides and failed to mention doors.

The second charge we pleaded guilty to was of concern to every zoo in the UK and has set
a precedent and new standard for all UK Zoos. The fact we had a double door system for the
Tiger house that was to the exact standard as written in HSE Guidelines for Zoos and that it
had been approved and inspected on 14 separate DEFRA inspections and numerous other
Council inspections when everyone agreed its suitability and it was fit for purpose, the
Courts position was that in the event of a tiger accessing the keeper corridor due to keeper
error or major failure of systems there was no opportunity to control the tiger without opening
the door to the public domain, thus potentially placing the public at risk. This of course never
actually happened but it was decided the risk was there.

Of course in 2014 we did change our Tiger House completely in the works due to our
expansion project and the door was changed to comply with all the requirements set out in
the Court. However, it is apparent that many other Zoos still have the HSE/DEFRA SSSMZP
compliant access to big cat houses and this will require universal change to comply with this
new precedent ruling. At no stage in any of the Judges summing up or comment did he
attempt to lay any blame on the company for the events and made it clear that the actual
cause of the keepers death was not the door or the outer door. As the inquest fully
concluded with witness evidence and a Jury verdict it was a tragic accident and no one was
to blame. The Judge was very careful to point out the company’s safety record, good
practices and risk assessments as a whole and the proactive safety we have. He also
commented clearly on how valuable the Zoo is the region as a whole and it educational and
conservation value. Stating openly in court he wanted the Zoo to move forward with
confidence and to assist us as much as possible giving an unprecedented 10 years to pay
the fine so it had a little effect on development as possible.

We feel very much that the past two years of Council involvement with the zoo regarding the
ZLA has similar appearance and a multitude of allegations are made against the Company
but very much against DG. The Council spent £500,000 of costs (net £350,000) they had to
pay themselves from the public purse of tax payer money yet not one allegation against DG
was able to be proven or upheld.

We certainly do not wish for this situation to end up in a Court room for costs to escalate
beyond logic over what are easily resolvable issues if we can all see the reality, move away




from conflict and acknowledge the fact we all wish to move forward positively and
constructively.

We noted the official press release of the Council reported after the Court hearing that stated
we wish to work with the Zoo to a positive future” or words to that similar effect.

We would certainly hope that once the new Licence is issued in early July then we can all
draw a line in the sand and start again ending conflict and the waste of valuable public
funds. :

Zoo Licence Renewal Application: Zoo Finances

The guestions asked by the Councils Legal Officer in this regard has been answered in a
letter from the company’s Auditing Accountants.

It is noted that Belfast Zoo under the same ZLA made trading losses of £2m in 2014
and a further £2m loss in 2015 and is still licenced and continues its local authority
support. :




To the Licencing Committee and DEFRA Zoo Inspectors,

Management and staff have been deeply concerned by the last 6 months repr
and negative images portrayed of this zoo and in particular its owner David Gill
and we want to use this opportunity to lay before inspectors and councillors our
personal feelings on the matter.

We consider ourselves a family here, a tight knit, passionate family with

David at the heart of it.

Working at Safari Zoo can be hard work, but inspired by David’s work rate, high
standards and his dedication to wildlife and humanitarian causes overseas. That
work is so rewarding and as a whole team we wish to place on record that the
person in David Gill that inspectors describe or accuse is absolutely not the
person we work with day in, day out, every day.

We do not agree with the implication that David in any way is a negative
influence in the zoo or does not work to modern zoo practice. We would say
categorically when David came back to Animal Management in December 2015
and took control, the whole zoo woke up again, activity took place and staff were
enthused, standards rose and we categorically can say his experience,
encouragement and personal involvement with individuals has lifted moral to a
high level despite the threats made to our future. His enthusiasm and
encouragement to everyone to do their best to make full compliance to all
Licence conditions in the timescales set is unrelenting.

As inspectors should have seen when they interviewed some of us we are proud
of our zoo, the public appraisals and the support we have.

David is an integral part of that quality we provide.

Any criticism of David is a criticism of us all.

We know there are a few issues, many of them easily resolved and are lessons
learned but it is David who drives compliance to SSSMZP, drives us all to abide
by health & safety, drives standards, drives animal welfare, drives and tries to
awaken our appreciation of legislation and drives the need to push, prioritise
and get results and we all fail to understand how anyone could ever not see or
appreciate this not only in the amount of money he puts into it all but by his own
personal commitment to all these issues.

David Gill has provided an immeasurable amount of success to this zoo and there
is no evidence whatsoever to back up the demands of the inspectors or
councillors for DG not to have a say or be a positive and vibrant influence.

Safari Zoo Limited, Dalton-in-Furmess, Cumbria, England UK LA15 8JR

T +44 (0) 1220 466086 ext 0 www.safarizoo.co.uk

F+44 (0) 1929 461310 www.wildlifeprotection.info VAT No. 621311494

E office@wildanimalpatk.co.uk wwawitigertrust.info Registered in England No. 3561692



The Management and staff of the Safari Zoo wish to acknowledge the consta
dedication, application and drive that David Gill has brought to the Zoo righ :
to 16th June 2016. He is looked up to by all as a man with immense knowled ‘
wildlife, zoo animals and the one all go to for advice and support. i

His vision and staggering hard work in the concept, building and development of
this zoo from nothing in 1994 to one of the country’s top zoos Is to be wholly
admired.

David’s ideas and concepts of a modern, effective, communicative and
conservation focused zoo are the catalyst to the success of the zoo and what
makes 350,000 visitors a year drive for many hours past many other zoos to visit
the unique and special SAFARI Z0OO. ' -
Ttis also vital for us all to keep his enthusiasm for conservation and the

teamwork between Safari Zoo and the projects he personally set up and

manages. -

His willingness to hand over the reins of his creation to others voluntarily is a
testament to his desire for the mission to continue long into the future. We wish
him and his large family all the very best in his new life that will be focused on
his conservation work overseas and we will do everything we can to continue
the zoo in the same direction and effect it has now.

But we would like to end with ... We need David Gill we need his ideas and his
contribution in this zoo as it is vital to keep its heart alive.

His dedication to conservation, high standards and welfare of all animals has
been an inspiration to so many.

We know we have an amazing creation here and all we want to do is to get on
with our mission and continue this zoos continuous growth in popularity for the
long term.

Regards

The Management Team

Karen Brewer, Jayne Birkett, Paula Mason
Kim Zee Banks

Safari Zoo Limited, Dalton-in-Furness, Cumbria, England UK LA15 81R

T +44 (0) 1999 466086 ext 0 wwaw,safarizoo.co.uk

F +44 (0) 19926 461310 wwwwildlifeprotection.info VAT No, 621311496

E office@wildanimalpark.co.uk wiwaw tigertrust.info Registered in Engiand Mo, 3561692



Additional comments from the inspectors regarding SLSZ’s response to the
inspection of May 2016

The inspectors have read the response from SLSZ and their additional letter
signed by the Management team, Karen Brewer, Jayne Birkett, Paula Mason,
and Kim Zee Banks.

It is not our intention to respond in detail to all the comments made by the

200, nor to add further information to our report. However we feel thatitis
important the Licensing committee should have a full understanding of the

inspection process.

The inspection team would like to make it clear that;

1. All three inspectors are Secretary of State Zoo Inspectors, and as such are
completely independent of the Local Authority. They have been brought in
solely to inspect the zoo, to ensure that it is meeting the Secretary of
Standards for Modern Zoo Practice, and advise the Local Authority accordingly.

2. All three Zoo inspectors are highly experienced, having inspected zoos for
over 32 years, 20 years and 15 years approximately. Two of the inspectors are
or have been members of the Government’s Zoos Expert Committee (ZEC}, and
one is currently Chair of ZEC.

3. Throughout the process the inspectors have made every endeavour to
inspect the zoo in an objective manner. The inspection was carried out
uninfluenced by personal feelings or prejudice towards any member of the
200.

4. The inspection team consisted of the three S of S inspectors plus two
members of Barrow BC to assist. The team inspected the zoo itself and
interviewed staff over a two day period. However they also spent considerable
time prior to the inspection reading relevant documentation, and a number of
further days after the inspection in meetings and writing their report.

5. The inspectors would like to stress that they look at, and inspect only the
visual and factual information that they are presented with, on the day of the
inspection. Contemporaneous notes are made at the time, by all members of
the inspection team. They do not compare zoos directly with other zoos and
are conscious of not inspecting this zoo to a higher standard than any other
z00. The inspectors are guided by the SSSMZP, the ZEC Guidance for Secretary
of State-appointed Inspectors and the ZEC Handbook.

APPENDIX No, &



6. The inspection process was undertaken allowing the zoo as much time as
the zoo felt was required to present all information and documentation that
they wished to supply. At a number of steps during the process, for example
when interviewing staff, the zoo personnel were each asked if they had any
further comments or submissions that they wished to make.

7. On the third day of the inspection process, the inspectors felt it important
that the management and the owner should meet with the inspectors to

discuss the report, and matters arising.

Present at that time, including the three inspectors, was David Gill,
Frieda Schreiber, David Armitage, Karen Brewer and Jayne Birkett.

This meeting was undertaken at the Barrow Borough Council Building,
without any council officers present.

The inspectors deliberately asked the management team and the owner,
whether they felt that the inspection had been carried out fairly and in
an objective manner.

They all agreed that we carried out the inspection fairly and objectively.
They all informed us that they had nothing further they wished to add or
submit.

8. During this meeting;

e The management team assured the inspectors that they, as a team, felt

able to take over managing and running the zoo.

DG informed the inspectors that he had been planning to take a step
back, and that he now felt the management team were in a place where
they could pick up the reins.

He informed the inspectors that he would hand over the running of the
zoo immediately.

At no time was any pressure brought on him, by the inspectors to come
to this conclusion. Indeed, the background to both the November 2015
and May 2016 inspections was that DG had already announced his
intention to step back from running the Zoo. Throughout the process
the inspectors have agreed with DG that this was a good idea and the
best way forward for the Zoo.

9. When reading the response from the zoo the inspectors note;

o DG will be an “external advisor” until the arrival of a new Curator.



» That the management team has again changed and DA’s position is how
“under review.”

o That DG, despite having informed us that he personally had taken over
running the zoo since last November, was laying the blame for any
failings at other peoples’ feet.

10. When assessing mortalities at SLSZ the inspectors used their best
judgement based on the evidence available. Direct comparison with other zoos
when looking at such data is extremely difficult as collections hold different
taxa and use different management systems, e.g. small, short-lived species,
show very different mortality percentages compared to collections holding
larger, longer living species. Trying to compare statistics between different
200s is not helpful to the process of assessing SLSZ’s performance in this
respect. '

The naming by SLSZ of the three collections with which the inspectors have or
have had connection shows a petulant, unprofessional response to the
inspection process. The citing of data in a negative tone from a fourth,
unconnected zoo demonstrates very poor judgement.

A more detailed analysis of the mortality rates at SLSZ at the November 2015
inspection was made difficult by the records being incomplete and inconsistent
across different formats, e.g. day books, post mortem records, ZIMS. Further
analysis since November 2015 was not helped by the unexplained
disappearance of the 2015 Keeper Day Books.

11. In conclusion the inspectors do not accept the claims made in the report by
the zoo about the inspection process.
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APPENDIX No. (5

10 June 2016
Zoo fined over health and safety breaches

South Lakes Safari Zoo Lid (formerly known as South Lakes Wild Animal Park Lid)
has been convicted over breaches relating to 2 incidents involving employees. On
24 May 2013 Sarah McClay a keeper at the zoo, was mauled to death by a tiger; on
18t July 2014 an employee sustained a broken bone following a fall from a ladder
whilst placing meat at height on a pole for the lion feeding. In relation to the first
incident the company pleaded guilty fo breaches of Sections 2 and 3 of the Health &
Safety at Work etc Act 1974. In relation to the second incident the company pleaded
guilty to breaches of Section 2 of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and
Regulation 3(1) of the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999.

Following guilty pleas the sentencing hearing was held in Preston Crown Court on 10
June 2016 and the company was fined £300,000 in respect of the breaches in
relation to the first incident; in relation to the second incident the company was fined
£50,000.

A spokesperson for Barrow Borough Council who investigated the incidents said:
“The zoo failed to comply with expected standards in relation to risk assessing and
proactively maintaining the door (specifically the self closing mechanism) which was
the final line of defence between a keeper and a tiger. These failings were a
significant cause of the death of Sarah McClay. The zoo also did not sufficiently
address the risks arising from the escape of a big cat from the keeper's area into the
public area.

In relation to the second incident, the zoo failed to ensure the safety of its employees
by not undertaking a suitable and sufficient risk assessment in relation to working at
height which involved the placing of meat at height on a pole 5 metres above the
ground whilst using ladders for the lion feeding. This led to a keeper being injured as
a result of a fall from height.

This conviction is a warning to companies that they must adequately assess the risks
of all their activities and put in place a proactive maintenance and inspection regime
for all pieces of work equipment to ensure they work correctly. This conviction also
serves as a warning to companies whose employees work at height, in that all such
work should be adequately risk assessed to ensure that it can be undertaken safely
or the risk of working at height can be removed entirely.

This conviction is the culmination of a long investigation by Barrow Borough Council
and the Council we wish to once again offer our condolences to Sarah McClay's
family on what will be a very difficult day for them.”

Note to Editors



1.Section 3 (1) of The Act states: "It shall be the duty of every employer to conduct
his undertaking in such a way as to ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable,

" that persons not in his employment who may be affected thereby are not thereby
exposed to risks to their health or safety.

2. Section 2 (1) of the Act states: “ It shall be the duty of every employer to conduct -
his undertaking in such a way as to ensure, so far as is reasonable practicable,
the health, safety and welfare at work of their employees.

3.Regqulation 3 of the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999
relates to risk assessment and every employer should make a suitable and
sufficient risk assessment of the risks to the health and safety of his employees
to which they are exposed whilst they are at work, and-the risks to the health and
safety of persons not in his employment arising out of or in connection with the

conduct of him by his undertaking.
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Soufh Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 May 2015

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 May 2015.

Fair review of the business

The company was nearing completion of the expansion project by the end of the year, increasing space for
current species and ailowing for the introduction of new animals. The zoo has been awarded the "Top Attraction
for Excellence in the Lake District 1999, 2000, 2003, 2005, and 2008" by Cumbria Tourist Board, and is one of
the few parks to let many species of primates including the eight species of lemur roam free around the park. In
2014, in its twentieth year the park changed its name from South Lakes Wild Animal Park to South Lakes Safari
Z06, the park also made the top ten of TripAdvisor's highest rated zoos and aquariurns in the UK. : :

The year ending 315t May 2015 has seen the business growth exceed our expectations, turnover has increased to
over £3.2 million from £2.8 million in the previous year. The growth is due to increased visitor numbers and the
introduction of animal experiences. :

The directors are delighted with the expansion and continuing developments to animal enclosures and housing,
the big cats exhibit has been extended with new enclosures and species. The new land has made way for a new
walk round safari area giving visitors a hands on experience,

‘Principal risks and uncertainties
The directors have maintained the strategy to increase visitor numbers, visitor education, conservation and
turnover, the risks and uncertainties in are: ) :

1. Weather is by far our biggest risk as this effects the turnover and visitor numbers;

2. Financial constraints on personal funds available to visitors;
3. Increased competition from other attractions and leisure activities,

Approved by the Board on 25 February 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr David Stanley Gill
Chairman
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 May 2015

The directors present their report and the abbreviated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015.

Directors of the company
The director who held office during the year was as follows:

Mr David Stanley Gill - Chatrman

The following directors were appointed after the year end:

Christina Fischer (appointed 24 August 2015 and Resigned 23 November 2015)
Frieda Rivera-Schreiber (appoir;ted 4 August 2015)

Future developments

The directors are looking to reorganise the company and as part of that reorganisation gifting the zoo operation
to an independent charity the Safari Zoo Nature Foundation (previously the Wildlife Protection Foundation).
The current company would continue but only as a vehicle holding the land and assets which would be rented to
the charity. This is dependent on agreeing facilities with the bank.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information. The
directors confirm that there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is
unaware.

Approved by the Board on 25 February 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Chairman
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Independent Auditor's Reporf
Under section 449 of the Companies Act 2006

We have examined the abbreviated accounts set out on pages 6 fo 19 together with the financial statements of
South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited for the year ended 31 May 2015 prepared under section 396 of the Companies

Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the company, in accordance with Section 449 of the Companies Act 2006, Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

The directors are responsible for preparing the abbreviated accounts in accordance with section 445 of the
Companies Act 2006. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion as to whether the company is
entitled to deliver abbreviated accounts to the Registrar of Companies and whether the abbreviated accounts
have been properly prepared in accordance with the regulations made under that section and to report our
opinion to you. -

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with Bulletin 2008/4 issued by the Auditing Practices Board, In
accordance with that Bulletin we have carried out the procedures we consider necessary to confirm, by reference
to the financial statements, that the company is entitled to deliver abbreviated accounts and that the abbreviated

accounts are properly prepared.

Opinion .

In our opinion the company is entifled to deliver abbreviated accounts prepared in accordance with section
445(3) of the Companies Act 2006, and the abbreviated accounts have been properly prepared in accordance
with the regulations made under that seclion,

Other information
On 25 February 2016 we reported as aunditor to the members of the company on the financial statements
prepared under section 396 of the companies Act 2006 and our report was as follows:

We have audited the financial statements of South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited for the year ended 31 May 2015,
set out on pages 7 to 20. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose, Ta the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do net accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as 2 body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the (set out on page ), the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Internaticnal Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB's)
Ethical Standards for Auditors.
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Seuth Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Independent Auditor's Report
Under section 449 of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for qualified opinion on financial statements

With respect to stock having a carrying amount of £162,710 the audit evidence available to us was limited

because there was no stocktake performed at 31 May 2015 as the company had previously qualified as small and

no audit had been required, Owing to the nature of the company’s records, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate andit evidence regarding the stock quantities by using other audit procedures.

Qualified opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion, exsept for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opmlon paragraph, the
financial statements:

*  give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 May 2015 and of its profit for the year '

then ended;

+  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Emphasis of matter

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified apart from the inabilily to verify
stock, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made in the notes describing contingent liabilities,
going concern and post balance sheet events. The nature of these issues is hard to quantify due to the uncertain
outcorne of the court cases and no provision for any of these potential liabilities has been made in these financial
statements, Should all these uncertainties crystallise the going concern position of the company would be
compromised. Qur apinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Helen Holmes BSc FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Stables Thompson & Briscoe Lid, Statutory Auditor

Lowther House
Lowther Street
Kendal
Cumbria

LA% 4DX

25 February 2016
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Abbreviated Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 May 2015

2015 2014
Note £ £
Tumover . ' 3,272,309 2,816,067
Gross profit 2,513,861 2,253,238
Administrative expenses {2,344,166) (2,155,783)
Operating profit 2 169,695 97,455
. Other interest receivable a_nd similar income 5 30 - 1,816
Interest payable and similar charges . 6 (50,968) - {45377)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation ' _ 118,757 53,894
Tax on profit on ordinary activities _ 7 (51,461 (96,486)
" Profit/(loss) for the financial year 15 67,296 (42,592)

Turnover and operating profit derive wholly from continuing operations.

The company has no recognised gains ot losses for the year other than the results above.

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

(Registration number: 03561692)
Abbreviated Balance Sheet as at 31 May 2015

2015 2014
Note £ £

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 8 4,048,390 3,552,327
Current assets
Stocks 9 162,710 198,548
Drebtors 10 14,625 11,079
Cash at bank and in hand 239,207 408,896

416,542 618,523
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year i1 {1,346,096) (1,238,361)
Net current liabilities (929,554} {619,838)
Total assets less current liabilities 3,118,836 2,932,489
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 12 (1,834,191) (1,766,212}
Provisions for liabilities 13 {133,399) (82,328)
Net assets 1,151,246 1,083,949
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 1 1
Profit and loss account 15 1,151,245 1,083,948
Shareholders' funds 16 - 1,151,246 1,083,949

The abbreviated accounts have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of the Companies Act

2006 relating to medium-sized commpanies.

Approved by the Board on 25 February 2016 and signed on iis behalf by:

Mr David Stanley Gill
Chairman

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial staterments.
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31 May 2015

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities

2015 2014

£ £
Operating profit . 169,695 97,455
Depreciation, amertisation and impairment charges 216,892 163,405
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (6,776) -
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 35,838 {47,340)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors ' (3,546) 28,959
Inerease in-creditors ’ : 144,943 379,288
Net cash inflow from operafing activities ' 557,046 621,767
Cash flow statement

- 2015 2014

£ £
Net cash inflow from operating activities 557,046 621,767
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received ' 30 1,816
Interest paid (50,968} . (45,377)

(50,938) (43,561)

Taxation paid (46,619) (25,709)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {755,180) {1,257,680)
Sale of tangible fixed assels . 53,001 -

(706,17%) (1,257,680)
Net cash outflow before management of liquid resources and
financing ‘ ' (246,690) {705,183)
Financing
Repayment of loans and borrowings 77,001 789,565
(Decrease)/increase in cash {169,689) 84,382

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial staternents.
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31 May 2015

2015 2014
) Note £ £
{Decrease)/increase in cash ’ ) ’ (169,689) 84,382
Cash outflow from repayment of loans {77,000) (789,565)
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 19 (246,689) (705,183)
19 - . -
Movement in net debt 19 (246,689) (705,183)
Net debt at 1 June 19 (1,112,169) (406,986)

Netdebtat 31 May . 19 (1,358,858) (1,112,169)

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accouating palicies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The company has breached the covenants
agreed with the bank when the new loans were obiained and this could cause cash flow issues should the bank
recall the facilities agreed, However, the company is in negotiations with the bank as part of future plans and it
believes that these issues can be resotved. There are also issues with potential contingent labilities as described
in that note. However all these issues are uncertain and the company has sufficient reserves and profitability to
continue as a going concern provided these can be resolved. '

Turnover
Tumover represents amounts chargeable, net of value added tax, in respect of the sale of goods and services to

customers.

Revenue recognition

_Revenue is recognised to the extent that the company obtains the right to consideration in exchange for its
performance. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates,
VAT and other sales tax or duty. :

Government grants

Grants are credited to deferred revenue. Grants towards capital expenditure are released to the profit
and loss account over the expected useful life of the assets, Grants towards revenue expenditure are
released to the profit and loss account as the related expenditure is incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on tangible fixed assets so as to write off the cost or valuation, less any estimated
residual value, over their expected useful economic life as follows:

Asset class . Depreciation method and rate
Freehold land and buildings 2% straight line on buildings only
Leasehold land and buildings 5% reducing balance on buildings only
Plant and machinery 209% reducing balance

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 15% reducing balance

Motor vehicles 25% reducing balance

Computer equipment 25% reducing balance

Stock

Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after due regard for obsolete and slow moving
stocks. Net realisable value is based on selling price less anticipated costs to completion and selfing costs.
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of
certain iterns for taxation and accounting purposes, which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date,
except as required by FRS19. :

Deferred tax is measured at the rates that are expected to apply in the periods when the timing differences are

expected to reverse, based on the tax rates and law enacted at the balance sheet date.

Pensions
The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions are recognised in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Operatiné profit / loss

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

2015 2014
£ £
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets - _ (6,776) -
Depreciation of owned assets 216,892 163,405
Audit of the financial statements 2,100 -

Particulars of employees

The average number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the year, analysed by
category was as follows: -

2015 2014

No. Na.
Administration and support 6 5
Other departments 67 50
73 55

The aggregate payroll costs were as follows:
2015 2014
: £ £

Wages and salaries 1,394,720 1,292,206
Social security costs 46,099 43,212
Other pension schemes 16,110 4,441
1,456,929 1,339,859
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Directors' remuneration

The director's remuneration for the year was as follows:

Remuneration
Contributions paid to money purchase schemes
Sums paid to third parties for directors’ services

In respect of the highest paid director:

Remuneration
Benefits under long-term incentive schemes (excluding shares)
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes

5 Other interest receivable and similar income

Bank interest receivable

6 Interest payable and similar charges

Interest on other loans
Other interest payabls

2015 2014
£ £
£1,821 63,734
2,400 2,400
500,000 500,000
514,221 566,134
2015 2014
£ £
11,821 63,734
500,000 500,000
2,400 2,400
2015 2014
£ £
30 1,816
2015 2014
£ £
50,968 45373
- 4
50,968 45,377
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

7 Taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Current tax
Corporation tax charge

Adjustments in respect of previous years

UK Corporation tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences

Total tax on profit on ordinary activities

" Factors affecting current tax charge for the year

2015 2014
£ £

; 46,229

390 -

390 46,229

51,071 50,257

51,461 96,486

The tax on profit on ordinary activities for the year is the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
(2014 - the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 20% (2014 - 20%)).

The differences are reconciled below:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Corporation tax at standard rate

Capital allowances in excess of depreciation

Noi-taxable income

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Capital gains
Unrelicved tax losses carried forward

Total current tax

2015 2014
£ £

118,757 53,894
23,751 10,779
(40,042) (44,910)
(13,474 (24,740)
2,648 105,100
(1,369) -
28,486 -

- 46,229
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The gain on the sale of freehold property will be eligible for rollover relief if if the sa

le proceeds are reinvested

in relevant assets The estimated tax that would become payable if the conditions are not met amounts to £1,369

(2014 - £Nif).

The company has generated tax losses of £142,427 which should be recoverable bS( carrying back to the

previous year. This has not been provided as that year s under
period was £28,485 (2014 - £Nil).

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 June 2014
Additions
Disposals.

At 31 May 2015

Depreciation

At 1 June 2014

Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 May 2015
Net book value
At 31 May 20135
At 31 May 2014

investigation. The amount nat recognised in the

Short :
Freehold Jand  ieasehold fand Plant and Fixtures and
and buildings  and buildings machinery fittings
£ £ £ £

2,343,421 774,654 446,148 - 611,937
450,774 - 48,841 237,235
(46,154 - - £10,221)
2,748,041 774,654 494,989 838,951

- 239,274 241,554 150,733

31,632 26,769 50,732 100,241
. . - (10,150)

31,632 266,043 292,286 240,824
2,716,409 508,611 202,703 598,127
2,343,421 - 535,380 204,594 461,204
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South Lakgs Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Other tangibles
Motor vehicles 2 Total
£ £ i
Cost
At 1 June 2014 31,313 34,012 4,241,485
Additions 22,330 - 759,180
Disposals - - {56,375}
At 31 May 2015 ‘ 53,643 34,012 4,944,290
Depreciation
At 1 June 2014 27915 29,682 689,158
Charge for the year 6,434 1,084 216,892
Eliminated on disposals - - {10,150%
At 31 May 2015 34,349 30,7‘66 895,900
Net book value
At 31 May 2015 19,294 3,246 4,048,390
At 31 May 2014 , 3,398 4,330 3,552,327
9 Stocks
2015 2014
£ £
Finished goods 162,710 198,548
10 Debtors
2015 2014
. £ £
Trade debtors . - 3,565 792
Prepayments and accrued income 11,060 10,287
' 14,625 11,079

11 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Staterments

2015 2014
£ £

Bank loans and overdrafts 138,874 129,853
Trade creditors . 180,884 193,114
Corporation tax - 46,229
Other taxes and social security ) 78,497 87,031
Directors' current accounts 704,935 142,529
Other creditors 71,614 71,762
Accruals and deferred income 171,292 567,843

' 1,346,096 1,238,361

Creditors amounts falling due within one year includes the following liabilities, on which security has been
given by the company:

2013 2014
£ "£
Bank loans 138,874 129,853

The bank has a legal charge over the freehold land and buildings owned by the company and a debenture over
all the assets of the cornpany. ’

12 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

- 13

2015 2014
‘ £ £
Bank [oans and overdrafis 1,459,191 1,391,212
Accruals and deferred income 375,000 375,000
1,834,191 1,766,212

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year includes the following liabilities, on which security has
been given by the company:

2015 2014
£ £
Bapk loans 1,459,191 1,391,212

The bank has a legal charge over the freehold land and buildings owned by the company and a debenture over
al] the assets of the company.

Provisions
Deferred tax Total
£ £
At 1 June 2014 82,328 82,328
Charged to the profit and loss account 51,071 51,071
At 31 May 2015 . 133,399 133,399
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Analysis of deferred tax

2015 2014
£ £
Difference between accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
capital allowances (133,399) (82,328)
14 Share'capita]
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares
2015 2014
No. £ Ne. £
" ‘Ordinary shares of £1 each ' 1 1 1
15 Reserves
Profit and loss
account Total
£ £
At 1 June 2014 1,083,949 1,083,949
Profit for the year 67,296 67,296
At 31 May 2015 1,151,245 1,151,245
16 Recenciliation of mevement in shareholders' funds
2015 2014
£ £
Profit/{loss) attributable to the members of the company 67,296 (42,592)
Shareholders' funds at 1 June 1,083,950 1,126,541
Shareholders' funds at 31 May 1,151,246 1,083,949

17 Pension schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme, The pension cost charge for the year represents
contributions payable by the company to the scheme and amounted 1o £16,110 (2014 - £4,441),
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Contingent liabilities

The company invested in employee benefit trusts for the benefit of it's employees. The Revenue has opened
enquiries into the accounting periods in which these trusts were used while they are being challenged in the
courts. The company is confident that the tax planning will be successful, but there cannot be any certainty
about this and should they fail then the company could have a significant tax liability which could impact on its
cashflow and possibly also on its going concemn position. The total of the determinations issued by the Revenue
to date is £1,061,056 (this excludes potential interest and penalties).

In addition the company also faces a court case in June 2016 in relation to a health and safety jssue. This is a
very complex case and the outcome is currently uncertain.

19 Analysis of net debt
At1 June 2014 Cash flow At 31 May 2015

£ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 408,896 {169,689) 239,207
Debt due within one year (129,853) (9,021) (138,874)
Debt due after more than one year (1,391,212) (67,979 (1,459,191)
Net debt (1,112,169) (246,689)  (1,358,858)

20 Related party transactions

Other related party transactions
During the year the company made the following related party transactions:

Sumatran Tiger Trust and Wildlife Protection Foundation

(D S Gill is a trustee of these two charitics. South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited puts on various attractions
specifically to raise money for these two charities. The money is collected and paid across on a regular basis.
The company also manages the administration of both charities.)

At the balance sheet date the amount due to Sumatran Tiger Trust and Wildlife Protection Foundation was

£32,650 (2014 -£7,467).

D S Gill

(D S Gill owns the land on which the original part of the zoo was built and allows the company to use this rent
free.)

At the balance sheet date the amount due to D S Gilt was £Nil (2014 -£Nil).

21 Post balance sheet events

The company has breached the covenants agreed under the loan agreement with the bank. This would allow the
bank to reconsider the facilities granted to the company, but as this has just come to light the current position of
the bank regarding the breaches is not clear. The company is hopefial that this can be resolved as part of the
current negotiations with regard to the future structure of the business.
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South Lakes Safari Zoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Control

The directors are the controfling party by virtue of their controlling shareholding in the company. The ultimate
controlling party is the same as the controlling party. )
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22™ June 2016
Dear Richard,

Re: South Lakes Safari Zoo — firearms capability and Escape Plan

This letter is to update you on progress made in respect of the Zoo Licence, condition 23 [Annex
Four) - ‘there must be an agreed and written protocol for liaison with the Cumbria Constabulary in
response to the escape of an animal outside of the perimeter of the licensed premises and
appropriate firearms cover for the premises.’

I provided a verbal update at the Barrow BC Committee meeting on 17" December 2015.

[ last visited the Zoo on 3™ June 2016, having previously also attended anather of their Firearms
Training days on 20" April 2016.

| can further report favourably as follows —

Training

The ‘range days’ instigated on 14™ October 2015 with the initial training provided by independent
external provider Wildlife Management Services (WMS) have continued monthly. The relationship
with Furness Marksmen has developed, where Treasurer and member Trevor Earnshaw supervises
and guides the training in shooting accuracy and role-relevant range practices.

All range dates for 2016 are scheduled, with plans to shoot at greater distance,

In addition, Mark Conway, SLSZ Firearms lead, has conducted internal CPD meetings with the
firearms users and continues to do so, covering local arrangements, processes etc,

Training records are being kept, including written summary of the training content.

An external independent training provider will be used to refresh and benchmark practices and
deliver initial training to new team members as required, at least every two years.



Weaponry

The Zoo followed the guidance provided by Wildlife Management Services {WMS) in abandoning
use of the privately provided weapons belonging to Mr Gill and have purchased new weapons as
advised. Two of each of the primary weapons have been purchased, to maintain cover when one is
removed for training, service, repair etc. Ammunition of the natures advised is available for each
weapon.

On 3" June | ‘walked through’ the process of activation and arming of the team. The weapons are
secure to the satisfaction of our Firearms Licensing department but located appropriately and
accessible to named users. The cabinets are organised and the ammunition natures fabelled and

helpfully colour-coded to the weapons.
The dart-gun and blowpipe capability is being moved to a better focation, simplifying storage.

| will now seek to lodge a supplementary weapon at the Zoo so that it is available to respending
officers and Zoo staff — this is one of two .375 rifles operated by the Constabulary solely for large
animal destruction. ‘

Staffing

There are currently six firearms users in Zoo employment, plus the Zoo vet, Rick Browne. All now
have firearms certificates issued by this Constabulary that allow possession of the Zoo weapons.
The Zoo are seeking to recruit more users to future-proof and improve resilience,

Five of these staff are attached to three key areas of the Zoo which require minimum staffing in
their own right, resulting in a majority of days when at least two of these operatives are present.
On a minority of days when reduced 1o one, additional resilience comes from Frieda Rivera
schreiber and the Zoo vet, Rick Browne.

The users expected at work are identified on the published on the staffing list. Following a no-
notice request for this list, in June | saw that there were between 2 and 5 users on per day, on 26

of the 30 days of the month; 3 or more on duty on 20 days. This is a good level of coverage.

Animal Escape Procedures

The Zoo maintains an Escape Procedure document, shared with Police and underpinning a
Cumbria Constabulary Civil Contingencies Unit {CCCCU) Action Card. This is to the satisfaction of
CCcccU and due review in July 2016,

In summary — the Zoo’s approach to firearms provision has changed markedly from when 1 first
became involved. It is my assessment that the Zoo is now compliant with Zoo Licence condition 23

{Annex Four). The relationship we have with the Zoo will continue.

Please make contact if you wish to discuss matters further. | would be grateful for an early
indication whether or not my attendance is required at the hearing 57t July.

Regards,

Paul Telford
Inspector, Firearms Operations Unit




